
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 

The City Bridge Trust Committee 

 
Date: TUESDAY, 24 MAY 2016 

Time: 1.45 pm 

Venue: COMMITTEE ROOMS, 2ND FLOOR, WEST WING, GUILDHALL 

 
Members: Deputy Billy Dove 

Karina Dostalova 
Simon Duckworth 
Stuart Fraser 
Marianne Fredericks 
Deputy Stanley Ginsburg 
Alderman Alison Gowman 
Deputy the Revd Stephen Haines 
Jeremy Mayhew 
Alderman Vincent Keaveny 
Vivienne Littlechild 
Edward Lord 
Wendy Mead 
Ian Seaton 
The Rt Hon the Lord Mayor, The Lord Mountevans (Ex-Officio Member) 
 

 
 
 
Enquiries: Philippa Sewell  

tel. no.: 020 7332 1426 
philippa.sewell@cityoflondon.gov.uk 

 
 

 
Lunch will be served in the Guildhall Club at 1pm 

NB: Part of this meeting could be the subject of audio or video recording  
 

 
John Barradell 

Town Clerk and Chief Executive 

Public Document Pack



 

 

AGENDA 
 

Part 1 - Public Agenda 
 
1. APOLOGIES 
 
2. MEMBERS' DECLARATIONS UNDER THE CODE OF CONDUCT IN RESPECT OF 

ITEMS ON THE AGENDA 
 
3. ORDER OF THE COURT OF COMMON COUNCIL 
 To receive the Order of the Common Council from 21 April 2016. 
 For Information 
 (Pages 1 - 2) 

 
4. ELECTION OF CHAIRMAN 
 To elect a Chairman in accordance with Standing Order 29. 
 For Decision 
  
5. ELECTION OF DEPUTY CHAIRMAN 
 To elect a Deputy Chairman in accordance with Standing Order 30. 
 For Decision 
  
6. MINUTES 
 To agree the minutes and non-public summary of the meeting held on 18 March 

2016. 
 For Decision 
 (Pages 3 - 10) 

 
7. APPOINTMENT TO THE SOCIAL INVESTMENT BOARD 
 Report of the Town Clerk. 
 For Decision 
 (Pages 11 - 12) 

 
8. OUTSTANDING ACTIONS 
 Report of the Town Clerk. 
 For Information 
 (Pages 13 - 14) 

 
9. QUINQUENNIAL REVIEW 
 Report of the Chief Grants Officer. 
 For Decision 
 (Pages 15 - 22) 

 
10. PROGRESS REPORT 
 Report of the Chief Grants Officer. 
 For Information 
 (Pages 23 - 34) 

 
 
 
 



 

3 
 

11. GRANTS AND STRATEGIC INITIATIVES RECOMMENDATIONS AND 
ASSESSMENTS 

 To consider the Chief Grants Officer’s reports on grant recommendations as follows:- 
 For Decision 
 (Pages 35 - 36) 

 
 a) St Clement and St James Community Development Project  (Pages 37 - 38) 

 

 b) British Refugee Council  (Pages 39 - 40) 
 

 c) Community Activities Project Ealing - CAPE  (Pages 41 - 42) 
 

 d) Nafsiyat Intercultural Therapy Centre  (Pages 43 - 44) 
 

 e) Thames Reach Housing Association Limited  (Pages 45 - 46) 
 

 f) The Log Cabin  (Pages 47 - 48) 
 

 g) Together for Mental Wellbeing  (Pages 49 - 50) 
 

 h) Limes Community and Children's Centre  (Pages 51 - 52) 
 

 i) Poetry Society  (Pages 53 - 54) 
 

 j) Sycamore Trust U.K.  (Pages 55 - 56) 
 

 k) Women's Resource Centre  (Pages 57 - 60) 
 

 l) Age Exchange Theatre Trust  (Pages 61 - 64) 
 

 m) Age Concern Brent  (Pages 65 - 66) 
 

 n) Attend  (Pages 67 - 68) 
 

 o) Centre 404  (Pages 69 - 70) 
 

 p) Redbridge Carers Support Service  (Pages 71 - 72) 
 

 q) The Parochial Church Council Of The Ecclesiastical Parish Of St. Luke's 
Oseney Crescent  (Pages 73 - 74) 

 

 r) Ealing Law Centre  (Pages 75 - 76) 
 

 s) Home-Start Barnet  (Pages 77 - 78) 
 

 t) Mary Ward Legal Centre  (Pages 79 - 80) 
 

 u) Paddington Law Centre  (Pages 81 - 82) 
 

 v) St Hilda's East  (Pages 83 - 84) 
 

 w) Waltham Forest CAB  (Pages 85 - 86) 
 

 x) Reach Volunteering  (Pages 87 - 88) 
 

 y) StreetGames  (Pages 89 - 92) 
 

 z) Voluntary Action Harrow  (Pages 93 - 94) 
 
 



 

 

12. TO CONSIDER REPORTS OF THE CHIEF GRANTS OFFICER AS FOLLOWS:- 
 

 a) Applications recommended for rejection  (Pages 95 - 102) 
 

 b) Grants/expenditure considered under Delegated Authority  (Pages 103 - 106) 
 

 c) Withdrawn and Lapsed Applications  (Pages 107 - 110) 
 

 d) Review of eligibility cap on capital requests  (Pages 111 - 112) 
 

 e) Future of London's Voluntary Sector Infrastructure Support (Pages 113 - 118) 
 

 f) Reports on Monitoring Visits  (Pages 119 - 124) 
 

 g) Events Attended  (Pages 125 - 130) 
 
 

13. QUESTIONS ON MATTERS RELATING TO THE WORK OF THE COMMITTEE 
 
14. ANY OTHER BUSINESS THAT THE CHAIRMAN CONSIDERS TO BE URGENT 
 
15. EXCLUSION OF THE PUBLIC 
 MOTION – That under Section 100A(4) of the Local Government Act 1972, the public 

be excluded from the meeting for the following items of business on the grounds that 
they involve the likely disclosure of exempt information as defined in Part I of 
Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act. 
 
 

Part 2 - Non-Public Agenda 
 
16. NON-PUBLIC MINUTES 
 To agree the non-public minutes of the meeting held on 18 March 2016. 
 For Decision 
 (Pages 131 - 132) 

 
17. PIPELINE OF PRO-ACTIVE STRATEGIC GRANTS 
 Report of the Chief Grants Officer. 
 For Information 
 (Pages 133 - 136) 

 
 

18. QUESTIONS ON MATTERS RELATING TO THE WORK OF THE COMMITTEE 
 
 
19. ANY OTHER BUSINESS THAT THE CHAIRMAN CONSIDERS URGENT AND 

WHICH THE COMMITTEE AGREE SHOULD BE CONSIDERED WHILST THE 
PUBLIC ARE EXCLUDED 

 



MOUNTEVANS, Mayor RESOLVED: That the Court of Common 
Council holden in the Guildhall of the City of 
London on Thursday 21st April 2016, doth 
hereby appoint the following Committee until 
the first meeting of the Court in April, 2017. 

 

THE CITY BRIDGE TRUST COMMITTEE 
 

 
1. Constitution 

A Non-Ward Committee consisting of, 

 two Aldermen nominated by the Court of Aldermen 

 12 Commoners elected by the Court of Common Council, at least one of whom shall have fewer than five years’ 
service on the Court at the time of their appointment 

 the Right Honourable the Lord Mayor (ex-officio) 
 
2. Quorum  
 The quorum consists of any five Members. 
 
3. Membership 2016/17  
 

  ALDERMEN 
 

5 Alison Jane Gowman 

2 Vincent Keaveny 

 
  COMMONERS 

 

4 (4) Stuart John Fraser, C.B.E. 

6 (4) Vivienne Littlechild J.P. 

6 (4) Charles Edward Lord, O.B.E., J.P. 

4 (3) Simon D’Olier Duckworth, O.B.E., D.L 

6 (3) The Revd. Stephen Decatur Haines, Deputy, for three years 

8 (3) Wendy Mead, O.B.E. 

2 (2) Karina Dostalova 

4 (2) Marianne Bernadette Fredericks 

6 (2) Jeremy Paul Mayhew 

13 (1) William Harry Dove, O.B.E., J.P., Deputy 

4 (1) Stanley Ginsburg, J.P., Deputy 

5 (1) Ian Christopher Norman Seaton 

  together with the ex-officio Member referred to in paragraph 1 above. 

 
4. Terms of Reference 
 
(a) To determine all applications for grants pursuant to the Cy Pres Scheme for the administration of the Charity known as 

the Bridge House Estates, made by the Charity Commissioners on 9 February 1995 and brought into effect by the 
Charities (The Bridge House Estates) Order 1995, as respects the following purposes:- 
 

 
 

(i) in or towards the provision of transport and access to it for elderly or disabled people in the Greater London area; 
and, 

 
(ii) for other charitable purposes for the general benefit of the inhabitants of Greater London;  
 
other than grants above a sum of £500,000 which decisions are reserved to the Court of Common Council upon this 
Committee’s recommendation. 
 

(b) Subject to the terms of the Cy Pres Scheme and criteria as to the eligibility and treatment of applications specified from 
time to time by the Court of Common Council:- 
 

Page 1

Agenda Item 3



 (i) to review the criteria referred to above and to make recommendations to the Court of Common Council for 
changes thereto; 

 
(ii) to determine conditions and other requirements to be imposed in connection with grants that are approved; 
 

(iii) in considering the application of surplus income in accordance with clause 2 of the said Scheme, the Trustee
1
 

shall consult with such person, bodies corporate, local authorities, government departments and agencies, 
charities, voluntary organisations and other bodies as the Trustee may think appropriate from time to time; and, 

 
(iv) to review, as necessary, the amounts, nature and spread of grants approved or refused, and the operation of 

administrative arrangements for the Scheme. 
 

c) To be involved in the process for the appointment of the Chief Grants Officer, as appropriate. 
 
 
1 

The City of London Corporation, acting through the Court of Common Council, is the sole Trustee of Bridge House Estates 

(‘the Trustee’). 

 

Page 2



THE CITY BRIDGE TRUST COMMITTEE 
 

Friday, 18 March 2016  
 

Minutes of the meeting of The City Bridge Trust Committee held at Guildhall, EC2 on 
Friday, 18 March 2016 at 1.45 pm 

 
Present 
 
Members: 
Jeremy Mayhew (Chairman) 
Alderman Alison Gowman (Deputy 
Chairman) 
Deputy Billy Dove 
Karina Dostalova 
Marianne Fredericks 

Deputy the Revd Stephen Haines 
Alderman Vincent Keaveny 
Vivienne Littlechild 
Edward Lord 
Wendy Mead 
Ian Seaton 

 
Officers: 
Philippa Sewell - Town Clerk's Department 

Steven Reynolds - Chamberlain's Department 

Carys Griffith - Chamberlain's Department 

Anne Pietsch - Comptroller and City Solicitor's Department 

David Farnsworth - Chief Grants Officer 

Jenny Field - The City Bridge Trust 

Sandra Davidson - The City Bridge Trust 

Martin Hall - The City Bridge Trust 

Sandra Jones - The City Bridge Trust 

Jack Joslin - The City Bridge Trust 

Joan Millbank - The City Bridge Trust 

Julia Mirkin - The City Bridge Trust 

Ciaran Rafferty - The City Bridge Trust 

Shegufta Rahman - The City Bridge Trust 

Tim Wilson - The City Bridge Trust 

Stephanie Basten - Communications Office 

 
In Attendance: 

 Craig Calvert from UBS 

 Kentish Town City Farm  

 Children and Families Across Borders 

 NSPCC 
 

1. APOLOGIES  
Apologies were received from the Right Hon. the Lord Mayor Alderman the 
Lord Mountevans, Deputy Stanley Ginsburg, Simon Duckworth and Stuart 
Fraser. 
 
The Chairman welcomed the charities in attendance and Craig Calvert from 
UBS to the meeting. 

Page 3

Agenda Item 6



 
2. MEMBERS' DECLARATIONS UNDER THE CODE OF CONDUCT IN 

RESPECT OF ITEMS ON THE AGENDA  
The Deputy Chairman, Alderman Alison Gowman, declared a non-pecuniary 
interest in item 7x, Fine Cell Work.  
 
Edward Lord declared a non-pecuniary interest in item 7x, Fine Cell Work, by 
virtue of his Livery Company supporting the organisation. He also declared a 
non-pecuniary interest in item 7m, Albert Kennedy Trust, by virtue of being the 
former Chairman of Trustees.  
 
Ian Seaton declared a non-pecuniary interest in item 7g, Haringey Shed, by 
virtue of his Livery Company supporting Chicken Shed, of which this was a 
satellite project. 
 
Alderman Vincent Keaveny declared a non-pecuniary interest in item 7u, Latin 
American Women's Rights Service, by virtue of the wife of one his clients being 
the Chairman.  
 
The Chief Grants Officer declared a non-pecuniary interest in item 7aa by virtue 
of being a Trustee of London Funders.  
 

3. MINUTES  
RESOLVED – That the public minutes and non-public summary of the meeting 
held on 28 January 2016 be agreed as an accurate record.  
 

4. OUTSTANDING ACTIONS  
Members discussed the outstanding actions, and noted those that had been 
completed or were now being progressed through regular practices.  
 
RESOLVED – That the Outstanding Actions update be noted. 
 

5. PROGRESS REPORT  
The Committee received the regular progress report of the Chief Grants Officer 
and discussed the updates, including the recommendations in the report for 
carry forwards linked to substantial pieces of work to inform spend. 
 
With regard to Stepping Stones, Members noted that the second round of 
applications was reaching a conclusion, with 15 organisations being 
recommended for funding at a total grant value of £783,500. Consultation with 
charities and social investment specialists demonstrated the continued need for 
the Stepping Stones programme and, as such, officers were proposing a third 
round in summer 2016. In order to announce details of this at a reception with 
UBS planned for 22nd April, Officers were requesting an allocation of £500,000 
from the Trust’s 2016-17 grants budget be considered at this meeting. 
Members extended their thanks to UBS for co-funding the project.  
 
RESOLVED – That:  

a) £500,000 be allocated from the 2016-17 grants budget towards a third 
round of the Stepping Stones Fund, launching in the summer; 

Page 4



b) £1,200,000 be carried forward from the uplifted grants budget for the 
new employability programme; 

c) £850,000 be carried forward from the uplifted grants budget for the new 
infrastructure programme. 

 
6. CITY OF LONDON CORPORATION'S WORK ON EMPLOYABILITY  

The Committee received a report of the Chief Grants Officer regarding the work 
of the Corporation on employability.  
 
RESOLVED – That the report be noted. 
 

7. GRANTS AND STRATEGIC INITIATIVES RECOMMENDATIONS AND 
ASSESSMENTS  
 
7a Strategic Initiative - Justice First Fellowships (Legal Education 

Foundation)  
APPROVED – a grant of £320,000 over three years (£80,000; £160,000; 
£80,000) to the Legal Education Foundation to support the provision of six 
Justice First Fellowships in London. 
 
7y West London Zone  
Craig Calvert from UBS was present for the consideration of this item. 
 
APPROVED - £150,000 towards the cost of West London Zone's Collective 
Impact Bond. Funding is conditional on West London Zone delivering the 
following: 

 an updated social investment model, with details of pricing and revenue 
for approval by City Bridge Trust officers; 

 a report on a completed pilot that provides proof of concept of outcomes 
by end of 1 February, 2017 the latest; 

 copies of correspondence from commissioners that shows their 
commitment to the work; and 

 copies of correspondence from potential social investors showing their 
commitment to invest. 

 
7b Africa Advocacy Foundation (AAF)  
APPROVED - £106,500 over three years (£35,700; £35,500; £35,300) towards 
a part-time salary (3.5 days per week), project costs and overheads of a project 
to support young women in addressing the psychological impact of female 
genital mutilation. 
 
7c Lambeth and Southwark Mind  
APPROVED - £147,400 over three years (£27,400, £60,000, and £60,000) 
towards the salary costs of the CEO and Clinical Director (equivalent to a 
maximum of 1 full-time equivalent) and a contribution to other costs for the 
psychotherapy service.  
 
7d The Guild of Psychotherapists  
APPROVED - £76,200 over three years (£20,700; £24,900; £30,600) towards 
the salary of the part-time Clinic Co-ordinator (equivalent to £4,000 per annum) 

Page 5



and project running costs to expand the Community Psychotherapy Service for 
BME communities in South London. 
 
7e West London Gay Men's Project  
In response to a request from a Member, officers undertook to write to the 
organisation about the exclusionary language used in their name. 
 
APPROVED - £77,000 over three years (£25,400; £25,200; £26,400) towards 
the part-time Counsellor (20 hours per week) and the counselling and group 
therapy service for Trans* people in London. 
 
7f Kentish Town City Farm Ltd  
APPROVED - £118,300 over three years (£38,850, £39,450, £40,000) for the 
salary of a full-time Education Officer, together with the associated project 
running costs. 
 
7g Haringey Shed  
APPROVED - £91,100 over three years (£30,100; £30,350; £30,650) for the 
salary of a part-time (15 hours per week) Inclusion Worker and a contribution 
towards the Volunteer Managers post (15 hours per week) and related 
overheads and associated project costs. 
 
7h Headway East London  
APPROVED - £146,000 over three years (£46,600, £48,600, £50,800) towards 
the costs of establishing a flagship studio, marketing the work and enhancing 
public awareness. 
 
7i Independent Living Agency (ILA)  
APPROVED - £106,600 over three years (£42,000; £35,300; £29,300) for a 
part-time Project Coordinator (21 hours per week) to manage the project and 
project costs for delivering the Peer Support Brokers programme for 
Londoners. 
 
7j Islington Boat Club (IBC)  
APPROVED - £81,900 over three years (3 x £27,300) towards the costs of 4 
instructors for 7 hours per week each, for 39 weeks per annum. The grant is 
subject to submission of satisfactory, final, co-designed programmes. 
 
7k Rosetta Life  
APPROVED - £66,700 over two years (£21,050, £45,650) to replicate the 
model for movement and singing for stroke survivors across London. 
 
7l St Paul's Church West Hackney  
APPROVED - £52,250 towards the redevelopment of the church hall to 
accessible standards to provide stair lifts and an accessible WC and 
shower/wet room. 
 
7m Albert Kennedy Trust  
APPROVED - £90,000 over three years (3x £30,000) towards the salary costs 
of the full-time post of London Senior Practitioner. 

Page 6



 
7n International Social Service of the United Kingdom (ISS UK)  
APPROVED - £135,000 over three years (£45,000 each year) to cover the 
costs of full-time equivalent Social Worker and Caseworker and associated 
programme and running costs. 
 
7o Kiran Project  
APPROVED - £102,500 (£34,000; £34,200; £34,300) towards a full-time salary 
and on-costs to support BME women who have survived, or are at risk of, 
domestic abuse. 
 
7p Claremont Project (Islington)  
APPROVED - £143,850 over three years (£49,300, £46,900, £47,650) for the 
salary of a full-time Flourishing Lives Project Co-ordinator, plus project running 
costs.  
 
7q Covent Garden Dragon Hall Trust  
APPROVED - £87,000 over three years (£29,600; £28,700; £28,700) for the 
salary of a full-time Community Development Worker and associated project 
costs working with older people aged 75+ and support to carers 65+. 
 
7r Deafblind UK  
APPROVED - £61,900 over two years (£30,700; £31,200) towards the part-
time salary (3 days per week) and associated running costs of an Outreach 
Officer (London) to maintain and develop support services for deafblind older 
people in London. 
 
7s St Augustine's Community Care Trust  
APPROVED - £99,500 (£32,500; £33,200; £33,800) towards the salary costs of 
a full-time Chief Operations Officer, and running costs of the Homelink Day 
Respite Service. 
 
7t Asylum Support Appeals Project  
APPROVED - £135,000 (3 x £45,000) over three years towards 50% of the 
salary costs of a Solicitor; 40%% of a Duty Scheme Co-ordinator; and 10% of 
the Director's salary; plus associated running costs. 
 
7u Latin American Women's Rights Service (LAWRS)  
APPROVED - £97,000 over three years (£31,300; £32,300; £33,400) towards 
the full-time Coordinator, costs of delivering the Advice programme in London, 
management and on-costs. 
 
7v South London Refugee Association  
APPROVED - £96,000 over three years (£31,700; £32,000; £32,300) towards 
the cost of a part-time Advice Co-ordinator (4 days per week), and associated 
running costs. 
 
7w Tamil Welfare Association (Newham) UK  
APPROVED - £102,000 (3x £34,000) towards the costs of a full-time Advice 
Worker and associated running costs. The first payment is subject to receipt of 

Page 7



satisfactory signed audited accounts for the years ended 31 December 2014 
and 31 December 2015. Release of subsequent quarterly payments is subject 
to the receipt of a satisfactory forecast each quarter of income and expenditure 
for the year, until such time that free reserves reach a reasonable level. 
 
7x Fine Cell Work  
APPROVED - £133,000 (£36,000; £46,000; £51,000) towards the running and 
on-costs of Fine Cell Work's Open the Gates programme supporting ex-
prisoners towards employment and settled living. The grant is awarded on the 
condition that the charity raises the balance of funds. 
 
7z Bexley Voluntary Service Council  
APPROVED - £118,800 over three years (£40,350; £42,650; £35,800) towards 
the part-time (4 days per week) Development Officer (Outcomes & Impact 
Champion), training and on costs associated with the Measuring Impact to 
Improve Performance project. 
 
7aa London Funders  
APPROVED - £250,000 over 5years (5 x £50,000) towards core costs and 
subject to external evaluation after three years. 
 
7bb Merton Voluntary Service Council  
APPROVED - £160,000 over three years (£51,400; £53,400; £55,200) towards 
0.8 of the Head of Development's salary and 0.2 of the Chief Executive's 
salary, evaluation workshop costs and associated overheads. 
 
7cc Pro Bono Community  
APPROVED - £110,955 over three years (3 x £36,985) for a part-time salary 
(2.5 days per week), training costs and overheads to train law students to 
volunteer in community advice agencies. 
 

8. TRANSFER OF PACE GRANT TO METRO CENTRE LTD  
The Committee considered a report of the Chief Grants Officer regarding a 
grant previously made to the Project for Advocacy, Counselling & Education 
(PACE), recommends that, following the recent closure of the balance of the 
grant made to that charity be transferred to the Metro Centre Limited. 
 
RESOLVED – That: 

a) the balance of the grant (i.e. £104,917) made to PACE at the September 
2015 Committee be revoked; 

b) this balance be transferred to the Metro Centre Limited to deliver the 
outcomes of the original PACE project. This grant, to be rounded up to 
£105,000 over three years (3 x £35,000), will be for the salary costs of 
an Advocacy Worker and related costs of an advocacy service for LGBT 
Londoners with mental health problems. 

 
9. TO CONSIDER REPORTS OF THE CHIEF GRANTS OFFICER AS 

FOLLOWS:-  
 
9a Applications recommended for rejection  

Page 8



The Committee considered a report of the Chief Grants Officer, which 
recommended that twenty grant applications be rejected for the reasons 
identified in the schedule attached to the report.  
 
RESOLVED – That twenty grant applications detailed in the schedule attached 
to the report be rejected. 
 
9b Grants/expenditure considered under Delegated Authority  
The Committee received a report of the Chief Grants Officer which advised 
Members of fifteen expenditure items, totalling £151,220, which had been 
presented for approval under delegated authority to the Chief Grants Officer in 
consultation with the Chairman and Deputy Chairman. 
 
RESOLVED – That the report be noted. 
 
9c Withdrawn and Lapsed Applications  
The Committee received a report of the Chief Grants Officer which provided 
details of thirteen applications which had been withdrawn or had lapsed. 
 
RESOLVED – That the report be noted. 
 
9d Variations to grants awarded  
The Committee received a report of the Chief Grants Officer which advised 
Members of a variation to two grants agreed by the Chief Grants Officer since 
the last meeting.  
 
RESOLVED – That the report be noted. 
 
9e Reports on Monitoring Visits  
The Committee received a report of the Chief Grants Officer about two visits 
that had taken place to Coram Voice and Spitalfields City Farm, and a Member 
gave a verbal update on a visit she had attended to Breast Cancer Care.  
 
RESOLVED – That the report be received. 
 
9f Events Attended  
The Committee noted a report of the Chief Grants Officer regarding the key 
meetings and events attended by Members and officers since the last meeting.  
 
RESOLVED – That the report be noted 
 

10. QUESTIONS ON MATTERS RELATING TO THE WORK OF THE 
COMMITTEE  
In response to a question from the Deputy Chairman, officers confirmed that all 
posts funded by the City Bridge Trust were paid the London Living Wage or 
above, and undertook to bring a report to a future meeting providing more 
detail. 
 

11. ANY OTHER BUSINESS THAT THE CHAIRMAN CONSIDERS TO BE 
URGENT  

Page 9



There was no other business. 
 

12. EXCLUSION OF THE PUBLIC  
RESOLVED – That under Section 100(A) of the Local Government Act 1972, 
the public be excluded from the meeting for the following items of business on 
the grounds that they involve the likely disclosure of exempt information as 
defined in Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act. 
 
Item No.     Exempt Paragraphs 
13 - 14      3 
15 – 16     - 
 

13. NON-PUBLIC MINUTES  
RESOLVED – That the non-public minutes of the meeting held on 28 January 
2016 be agreed as an accurate record.  
 

14. PIPELINE OF PRO-ACTIVE STRATEGIC GRANTS  
The Committee received a report of the Chief Grants Officer outlining the 
pipeline for strategic grants.  
 
RESOLVED – That the report be noted.  
 

15. QUESTIONS ON MATTERS RELATING TO THE WORK OF THE 
COMMITTEE  
There were no questions. 
 

16. ANY OTHER BUSINESS THAT THE CHAIRMAN CONSIDERS URGENT 
AND WHICH THE COMMITTEE AGREE SHOULD BE CONSIDERED 
WHILST THE PUBLIC ARE EXCLUDED  
There was no other business. 
 

 
 
The meeting ended at 2.40 pm 
 
 
 

 

Chairman 
 
 
Contact Officer: Philippa Sewell  
tel. no.: 020 7332 1426 
philippa.sewell@cityoflondon.gov.uk 

 

Page 10



Committee Date: 

The City Bridge Trust Committee  24 May 2016 

Subject: 
Appointment to the Social Investment Board  

Public 

Report of: 
Town Clerk 

For Decision 
Report author: 
Philippa Sewell, Committee & Members’ Services Officer 

 
Summary 

 
The purpose of this report is to consider the appointment to the Social Investment 
Board. The proposed Terms of Reference and composition of the Board are given 
below. 
 
Subject to approval by the Investment Committee at its meeting on 25th May 2016, 
the Terms of Reference will continue as present with the Board meeting up to six 
times a year. 
 
The composition of the Social Investment Board includes the Chairman of the City 
Bridge Trust Committee for the time being or his/her nominee. As Chairman, Jeremy 
Mayhew was nominated to serve on the Board for 2015/16. 
 

Recommendation 
 
It is recommended that consideration be given to the appointment to the Social 
Investment Board. 
 

Main Report 
 

Social Investment Board 

Composition  

 Chairman to be determined by the Board* 

 The Chairman of the Policy & Resources Committee for the time being 
or his/her nominee;  

 The Chairman of the Finance Committee for the time being or his/her 
nominee; 

 The Chairman of the City Bridge Trust Committee for the time being or 
his/her nominee; 

 The Chairman of the Financial Investment Board for the time being or 
his/her nominee;  

 One Member of the Financial Investment Board;  

Page 11

Agenda Item 7



 Two Members elected by the Court of Common Council, one of whom 
shall have fewer than five years’ service on the Court at the time of their 
appointment. 

All nominees must be Members of the Court of Common Council. 

Quorum  

The quorum consists of any 3 Members.  

Terms of Reference 

The terms of reference for the Social Investment Board shall be as follows:- 

a) to approve criteria for social investments and to authorise social 
 investments in accordance with such criteria 

b) to approve the appointment of and monitor the performance of 
 independent advisors tasked with undertaking due diligence of 
 investment proposals; and 

c) all of the above to be consistent with the strategic investment policies 
 determined by the Policy and Resources Committee and the 
 Investment Committee. 

There is provision within Standing Orders to enable the Chairman of the Social 
Investment Board to report on and speak to their activities and responsibilities 
in the Court of Common Council and to ensure that any decisions are taken 
without undue delay.   

*Note on the Chairmanship 

The Social Investment Board shall elect annually a Chairman and a Deputy 
Chairman from amongst all of its Members (including ex-officio Members who 
shall also have the power to vote in such elections) with the exception of any 
co-opted people.  

 
Membership 2015/16 
 

Nominee of the Chairman of the Policy & 
Resources Committee Alderman Peter Hewitt 

The Chairman of the Finance Committee  Deputy Roger Chadwick 

The Chairman of the City Bridge Trust 
Committee Jeremy Mayhew 

The Chairman of the Financial Investment Board  Andrew McMurtrie 

One Member of the Financial Investment Board Nicolas Bensted-Smith 

Two Members elected by the Court of Common 
Council 

Henry Colthurst 
Wendy Hyde 

 
Philippa Sewell 
Committee & Members’ Services Officer, 
Town Clerk’s Department 
T: 020 7332 1426 
E: philippa.sewell@cityoflondon.gov.uk 

Page 12

mailto:philippa.sewell@cityoflondon.gov.uk


 

 

The City Bridge Trust Committee – Outstanding Actions 
 

Item Date Action 
Officer 

responsible 

To be 
completed/ 
progressed 

to next stage 

Progress Update 

1. 28 Jan 2016 

5. Capital Projects Funding Cap 
6. Officers explore whether the cap on 

funding capital projects of over 
£10m is still appropriate.  

CBT Team May 2016 On agenda for May meeting. 

2. 28 Jan 2016 

Publicity 
Officers report back at a future 
meeting as to the scope for 
encouraging promotion within the 
current policies. 

CBT Team May 2016 Update provided in CGO report. 

3. 28 Jan 2016 

Proactive help for grantees  

Wording be added to the grant 
approval letter asking successful 
applicants to alert the City Bridge 
Trust of any financial difficulties. 

CBT Team May 2016 

COMPLETE - Officers consulted 
with other funders and have 
determined the most appropriate 
wording. 

4. 18 Mar 2016 

London Living Wage 

Officers report back clarifying the 
position regarding the London Living 
Wage. 

CBT Team May 2016 Update provided in CGO report. 

5. 18 Mar 2016 

UK Consortium LGBT 
As discussed under non-public 
minutes.  

CBT Team May 2016 
Oral update to be given at the May 
meeting. 

 
 

P
age 13

A
genda Item

 8



T
his page is intentionally left blank

P
age 14



Committee:   
The City Bridge Trust Committee 
 

Date:  
24 May 2016 

Subject:  
Quinquennial Review 
 

Public 

Report of:  
Chief Grants Officer 
 

For Decision 

 
Summary 

 
This paper introduces the next City Bridge Trust (CBT) Quinquennial Review of its 
funding priorities. It proposes: 
 

 A timeline: May 2016 – March 2018 

 A methodology: Diagnostic of London’s needs; analysis of CBT positioning 
within funder ecology; analysis of best use of assets 

 Resource needs to support the Review 
 

Recommendations 
 

 To agree the Review’s principles, methodology and timeline 

 To agree a budget of £190,000 to support the Review 
 

Main Report 
 

Background 
 
1. Since its inception in 1995, CBT grant-making has been rooted in the 

evidence of need in London. This evidence has been gathered through 
consulting with Londoners on a regular basis and careful consideration of data 
and research. This may be seen as a model of good practice whilst also 
satisfying the agreement with the Charity Commission that such consultation 
will underpin CBT’s funding. 

 
2. The pattern of consultation which you have agreed to date has been to have a 

comprehensive review every 5 years, (the CBT Quinquennial Review), whilst 
retaining flexibility throughout, to adapt your funding programmes to changes 
in the needs of Londoners. The last Quinquennial Review was completed in 
2013; and this underpins your current Investing in Londoners programmes. 
The next Quinquennial Review needs to be completed and implemented in 
2018. This is an exciting opportunity to work with others, to ensure that CBT 
makes the most of its distinctive position and assets to have the most positive 
impact it can in tacking disadvantage in London. 

 
Timeline 
 
3. A comprehensive draft timeline with related actions is attached at Appendix 1. 

In summary, this is as follows: 

Page 15

Agenda Item 9



 

2016   

 May CBT Committee consideration of outline 
proposals; 
Team Away Day focused on Quinquennial 
Review 

 June Communication plan in place and 
communication with target audience around 
Review in collaboration with partners; 
recruitment of project manager support;  

 July Literature review/commission research 

 August Research and organising consultation 

 September - 
November 

Consultation 

 December Analysis of all findings 

2017   

 January Analysis of all findings 

 February – April  Consultation on draft funding strategy 

 May Finalisation of draft funding strategy 

 July Agreement of CBT Committee on new funding 
strategy 

 September Agreement of Court of Common Council on 
new funding strategy 

 October – March  Operational changes and resources put in 
place to implement new funding strategy 

2018   

 April Launch of new funding programmes 

 
Methodology 
 
4. It is proposed that the following principles underpin the Review: 
 

 It will be conducted through the prism of ‘tackling disadvantage  in 
London’ 

 The analysis of need will be a zero-based approach – not entered 
through consideration of only what we are doing already 

 It will be collaborative, consultative and transparent: the process and 
findings will be openly available and proactively communicated. 

 
5. The Review is about both looking back and looking forward. The principal 
 elements proposed are: 

 

 Literature/data review of disadvantage in London 

 Evaluation of any lessons learned from our current programmes 

 Analysis of the most effective ways of using all of our assets (including 
a review of good practice in charitable funding/social investment) 

 Analysis of the distinctive position of City Bridge Trust within the 
London funder ecosystem (identification of its distinctive assets and 

Page 16



opportunities for leverage) in particular given the Corporation as trustee 
of the underpinning charity, Bridge House Estates 

 Consultation will be central to the Review: key stakeholders will be 
engaged from across the community and voluntary, statutory and 
private sectors 

 Collaboration will also be central to the Review: in particular with 
London Funders (embracing all London boroughs and key London 
funders) and Trust for London. 

 
Resources to Support the Review 
 
6. The Review will underpin c.£100M plus of charitable funding. It is essential 
 that the resources are committed to support an effective review and an 
 indicative budget is set out below: 
 

Project Management £50,000 Average of 2.5 days a 
week for 12 months at 
£400 per day 

Research c.£75,000  

Evaluation c.£25,000  

Consultation c.£30,000  

Professional Advice c.£10,000  

 
 It is recommended that the Committee agree this indicative budget. 
 
 
Appendix 1: Draft timeline 
 
 
 
David Farnsworth 
Chief Grants Officer 
T: 020 7332 3713 
E: david.farnsworth@cityoflondon.gov.uk 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 17

mailto:david.farnsworth@cityoflondon.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank

Page 18



 

APPENDIX 1 
 

D R A F T 
 

Timeline for Quinquennial/Five Year Strategic Review – (in collaboration 
with Trust for London/London Funders) 

 

DATE OBJECTIVE 

2016  

April 
 
 
May 
 
 
 
19th  

Reach agreement with Trust for London and London Funders 
as to extent of potential collaboration 
 
Appoint CBT Project Manager 
 
Set up collaboration protocol/governance if agreed 
 
Sufficient time inserted in diaries for team(s) and board(s) to 
engage with review 
 
Agreement as to scope of consultation:  
participants/audiences/questions (first draft) 
 
Draft CBT committee paper which finalises timeline/project 
plan and resource requirements to support review 
 
Draft communications plan to support the review in 
consultation with the Corporation’s communications and public 
affairs team(s) 
 
Consult with Legal on draft Committee Paper 
CBT Committee agreement to project plan/timeline/ resources 
 
Communicate consultation plan to Charity Commission 
 
Team away day focused on the Quinquennial Review 
 
Present Project Plan to Corporation’s People, Prosperity, and 
Place Groups and Chief Officers Group and request input into 
literature review and consultation 
 
Commission evaluation into Investing in Londoners 
programme 

June Commission literature review into 

 London context/needs through prism of tackling 
disadvantage 

 How to fund (ie best practice examples across grant 
making, social investment, mission related investment, 
blended finance etc.) 

 Funder ecosystem in London (analysis of who is 
funding what and what CBT best placed to fund) 

 

Page 19



 

July Literature review concluded by month end and analysis of any 
gaps in research or information gathering   
Agreement as to final list of consultees and identify group to 
test conclusions arising from research 

August Commission any research to fill gaps (including any vision 
pieces) 
 

September Consult with 

 Grantees/investees 

 Beneficiaries 

 Key stakeholders (including business and London 
boroughs) 

 Corporation officers and Members/Trustees 

 Funders 

 Others 

October 
 
20th 

Consultation continues 
 
Members away half day  

November Consultation continues 

December Team week: reading/reflection on analysis including team 
away day/s 

2017  

January 
 

Analysis of all findings and preparation of first draft funding 
strategy 

February Testing of draft funding strategy including grantee/sector 
survey and internal consultation with CBT Members (dedicated 
meeting to be arranged) 

March Testing of draft funding strategy including grantee/sector 
survey and internal consultation 

April Amendment to strategy following results of consultation 
 

May 
 

Agreement as to resource needs to deliver new funding 
strategy 
Preparation of final draft funding strategy 

June 
 

Preparation of paper for CBT Committee 
consideration/decision 
 

27th July Agreement of City Bridge Trust Committee  

August Contingency 

September 
 
14th 

 
 
Agreement of Court of Common Council 
 
Report conclusions to the Charity Commission 
Secure the resources required to deliver the funding strategy 

October - 
December 

Complete agreed changes to grants’ operations informed by 
review conclusions:  update processes/GIFTS/online 
application etc 
Set up robust evaluation/learning structure to underpin and 
inform next Funding Strategy 

  

Page 20



 

2018  

January Commission evaluation of next Funding Strategy. 

February - 
March 

Contingency 

April Launch of new funding programme launched and end date for 
applications to Investing in Londoner’s Programme announced 
 
Evaluation of new funding programme begins 

 
 
 

Page 21



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 22



Committee:   
The City Bridge Trust Committee 
 

Date:  
24 May 2016 
 

Subject:  
Progress Report 
 

Public 
 

Report of:  
Chief Grants Officer 
 

For Information 
 

 
Summary 

 
This is a regular report by the Chief Grants Officer. 
 

Recommendation 
 

That the report be noted. 
 

Main Report 
 

Introduction 
 
1. You will recall that you have agreed that each of the City Bridge Trust (CBT) 

Committee Meetings will begin with a presentation on a particular aspect of 
the work you support.  The exception to this was your March Committee 
meeting which, being the last meeting of the financial year, meant that there 
was an unusually large number of grant recommendations to consider. 

 
2. This is your sixth such meeting, and the last of your chosen themes.  To date, 

topics have covered Strengthening London’s Voluntary Sector,   Disability, 
Mental Health, London’s Environment, Older Londoners and today’s chosen 
topic, Reducing Poverty. 

 
3. It is suggested that the next four topics cover: 

 English for Speakers of Other languages 

 Resettlement and Rehabilitation of Offenders 

 Domestic and sexual violence 

 Advice Provision 
 

Today’s speaker is Sarah Greenwood, London Foodbank Network Manager at 
the Trussell Trust. 

 
Food Poverty and Foodbanks  
 
4. According to the Trust for London’s Poverty Profile, 27% of Londoners live in 

poverty after housing costs are taken into account, compared with 20% in the 
rest of England.  Housing costs are an important factor in London’s higher 
poverty rate.  The majority of people living in poverty are working families and 
as employment has increased, so has the number of working families in 
poverty - from 700,000 to 1.2 million in the last decade.  Almost 700,000 jobs 

Page 23

Agenda Item 10



in London (18%) pay below the London Living Wage.  This number has 
increased for five consecutive years, particularly among men working full-time. 

 
5. The Trussell Trust runs a network of over 400 foodbanks, giving emergency 
 food and support to people in crisis across the UK, where, according to the 
 Trussell Trust, thirteen million people live below the poverty line. In the last 
 year it gave 1,109,309 three day emergency food supplies to people in crisis. 
 
6. In London, the Trussell Trust supports 38 foodbanks operating from 99 

foodbank centres offering help to those in need, either at a parent foodbank or 
a satellite centre.  You are currently funding the London Foodbank Network 
Manager and the London Foodbank Development Officer posts.  You also are 
funding four local foodbanks currently.  Last year, Trussel Trust gave nearly 
106,000 three-day emergency food packs to support 65,500 adults and 
43,300 children in London. 

 
7. In October 2015, Sustain published its report Beyond the Food Bank which 
 highlighted initiatives that help to tackle food poverty.  The report states: 

 Ten London boroughs no longer offer a meals-on-wheels service, 
leaving vulnerable and isolated older people at risk of malnutrition. 

 There are estimated to be 220,000 London pupils living below the 
poverty line who are not enrolled for Free School Meals.  Most of these 
are not eligible, for example, because their parents receive tax credits to 
top up their low wage work. 

 Over half a million children in London will struggle for food during school 
holidays. 

 
Communications 
 
8. Officers have been working with City of London Corporation’s Communication 
 Office in order to update the Trust’s Communications Plan.  This will be 
 brought to the Committee later in the year. 
 
9. A round up of media coverage is provided in the table below where you will 
 also see that the Chief Grants Officer took part in a live online panel Q&A 
 session on the Guardian voluntary sector network.  
 

Page 24



Charity Publication Circulation Links Reach 

City Bridge Trust 

 

Charity Times Bi-monthly 8500 http://bit.ly/1T1sh7I 

 

City Bridge Trust receives 

London Living Wage 

accreditation 

National 

Trade 

Age UK South London Press Weekly 22500 South London Press 

reports that the City 

Bridge Trust has given a 

grant of over £100,000 to a 

Lewisham charity which 

supports disabled women 

South London 

City Bridge Trust Guardian Daily 179000 http://bit.ly/1MjqJmN 

 

David Farnsworth, Chief 

Grants Officer at the City 

Bridge Trust, is featured 

on a panel of key charity 

professionals as part of a 

live Q&A on the Guardian 

Voluntary Sector Network. 

 

National 

City Bridge Trust Guardian Daily 179000 http://bit.ly/1SELB7r 

 

David Farnsworth, Chief 

Grants Officer at the City 

Bridge Trust, is quoted in 

a Guardian piece on how 

charities can attract top 

funders. 

National 

 

P
age 25

http://bit.ly/1T1sh7I
http://bit.ly/1MjqJmN
http://bit.ly/1SELB7r


City Bridge Trust/Heritage 

Lottery Fund 

Horticulture Week Weekly 6300 http://bit.ly/23GKQxx 

 

The City Bridge Trust is 

referenced in a 

Horticulture Week article 

about a new almshouse 

courtyard, which will due 

to open in Clerkenwell. 

National 

Trade 

Stepping Stones Fund Better Society  http://bit.ly/1rUeVxO 

 

The City Bridge Trust is 

mentioned in a Better 

Society article on The 

Stepping Stones Fund, a 

partnership between the 

City of London’s charity 

and UBS, which aims to 

support charities and social 

enterprises. 

Trade 

Lambeth and Southwark 

Mind 

South London Press Weekly 22500 http://bit.ly/24K96kR 

David Farnsworth, Chief 

Grants Officer at the City 

Bridge Trust, is quoted in 

a South London Press 

piece on supporting 

Londoners with mental 

health problems. 

South London 

Age UK Waltham Forest Guardian Weekly 12900 http://bit.ly/1VWxcYr 

A £35,000 grant by the 

City Bridge Trust to Age 

UK features in the 

Waltham Forest Guardian  

North London 

P
age 26

http://bit.ly/1rUeVxO


Telling Your Stories 
 

10. You may recall that you agreed to continue your partnership with the Media 
 Trust for a fifth year on the ‘Telling Your Stories’ initiative whereby the Media 
 Trust works with a cohort of your grantees to produce short films about the 
 work of the organisation. These are used by the organisations to help promote 
 themselves by bringing their work to life. 
 

11. A long list of 30 recent grantees were invited to apply to take part, describing 
 what they do and why they would like to produce a short video.  Eight were 
 then selected using the following criteria: 

 the most compelling stories to tell 

 clearly perceived benefits to the organisation 

 a suitable platform to show the film 

 a commitment to engage with and learn from the process. 
 

12. After attending an introductory workshop, each of the eight was matched with 
a voluntary professional film-maker, together with Media Trust staff.  The 
resulting films were of a very high quality.  They were badged as part of your 
20th anniversary activities and were shown at a screening at the Barbican on 
23rd February 2016.  One of the film-makers, David Hewitt, also spoke about 
why he volunteered to take part in the project and what he got out of his 
involvement with the initiative. 

 

13. The films were also broadcast on the Community Channel and are available 
 on the Trust’s YouTube https://www.youtube.com/user/TheCityBridgeTrust. 
 
Stepping Stones Fund - Update 
 

14. At March Committee you were joined by Craig Calvert from UBS and 
approved a request from West London Zone under the Stepping Stones 
Fund, your partnership programme with the bank. Later that same month the 
Chairman, Deputy Chairman, and Chris Murphy (also UBS) met to agree the 
other awards that should be made under this initiative. The organisations 
funded in the second round of Stepping Stones are as follows: 

 
Strand 1: Capacity building 

 

Organisation Amount 

Only Connect £50,000 

Integrated Neurological Services £48,000 

AgeUK Lewisham & Southwark £45,000 

Women’s Aid £50,000 

Camden Society £50,000 

ReachOut £50,000 

Isledon Arts £46,000 

Croydon Voluntary Action £40,000 

Royal Foundation of St Katharine £50,000 

Sub-total £429,000 

Page 27

https://www.youtube.com/user/TheCityBridgeTrust


Strand 2: Piloting outcomes 
 

Organisation Amount 

Team Up £50,000 

Teens & Toddlers £34,500 

Theatre Centre £20,000 

Bromley by Bow Centre £50,000 

Action for Children £50,000 

Sub-total £204,500 

 
Strand 3: Risk Finance 

 

West London Zone £150,000 

Sub-total £150,000 

 
        Grand total: £783,500 

 
15. This funding is shared 70:30 with UBS. As I noted in my March report £1m 

was originally allocated for this second round of the programme, and we 
received 36 bids to a total value of £2,036,563. Those selected for funding 
were regarded as having the most credible plans to investigate how social 
investment finance might help them deliver their missions. 

 
16. On 22nd April UBS hosted a reception at their offices near Liverpool Street to 

celebrate the grantees. Speeches were made by the Chairman, Chris Murphy, 
and the CEO of Team Up, and we announced the launch of the third round of 
Stepping Stones for Summer 2016. The Trust and UBS will maintain their 
partnership in this next round (the bank is currently finalising the details of its 
commitments), and we are planning to invite initial proposals from eligible 
charities and social enterprises from June 2nd.  

 
City Funding Network raises more than £16,000 
 
17. The 686th Lord Mayor, Dame Fiona Woolf, hosted a City Funding Network 
 event on April 25th, at global law firm CMS London, where she is partner, 
 providing the opportunity for three-shortlisted small charities to pitch for a 
 strict six minutes to an audience of City workers. The event raised more than 
 £16,500. 
 
18. The audience was given a rare insight into the lives of refugee women finding 
 confidence through cooking; transgender people finding confidence in 
 swimming and trafficked women finding confidence in becoming owners of 
 their own businesses or finding new careers, all through three ground-
 breaking charities. 
 
 Beacon Awards Event - Innovating Philanthropy through Impact Investing 
 
19. On 16th March, City Philanthropy co-organised a Beacon Awards Fellowship 
 event featuring impact investor, co-founder of ClearlySo Angels and Beacon 

Page 28



 Award winner Suzanne Biegel at CCLA. She and other investors shared their 
 stories and insight with an invited audience. 
 
Young People’s Foundations 
 
20. Your Chief Grants Officer and Principal Grants Officer attended the official 
 launch of the three Young People’s Foundations (in Brent, Barnet and 
 Harrow) which you are supporting in conjunction with the John Lyon’s Charity.  
 
21. The launch, held at the JLC offices in Sloane Square, was very well attended 
 and where ample testimony was given as to the need for and value of this 
 exciting initiative. Foundations have been established in each of these 
 boroughs to bring together all local providers of youth services to maximise 
 resources and share common functions (eg bidding for tenders). 
 Representatives from several other boroughs were also in attendance and 
 showed great interest in replicating the model. 
 
London Living Wage 
 
22. City Bridge Trust has been awarded the London Living Wage Friendly Funder 
 accreditation by the Living Wage Foundation in recognition of its 
 implementation of the London Living Wage policy across its funding 
 relationships with voluntary organisations.  
 
23. As part of this commitment to be a London Living Wage Friendly Funder, the 

Trust will support applicant bodies to pay the London Living Wage to any 
grant-funded staff posts. London Living Wage Friendly Funders are 
themselves Living Wage employers and then, where possible, encourage 
grantees to become accredited employers over time. 

 
Grant Applications Summary 

 

24.  Your meeting today will consider 80 applications, including 26 grant 
recommendations as well as 18 grants to be noted as approved/ being 
considered by delegated authority, for a total recommended sum of 
£3,265,565.  If all recommendations are approved you will have spent 21% of 
your total grants budget for 2016/17 which is in line with targets.  The 
implications of today’s recommendations are shown in Table 1 against the 
grants budget for 2016/17.   
 

25. Your 2016/17 grants budget was increased by £4,000,000 at the Court of 
Common Council in July 2015.  Table 1 shows how this has been allocated to 
the core grants budget and additional funding schemes.  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 29



Table 1: Overall spend against 2015/16 budget 
 

  

  

Grants 
budget 

Grants 
spend 

% spend of 
annual 
budget 

Core 2016/17 Investing in Londoners grants budget 

Original Grants Budget £15,000,000     

20th anniversary budget uplift (20%) £800,000     

Total Budget Available £15,800,000     

        

Today's recommendations       

May 2016   £3,265,565 21% 

Total annual spend   £3,265,565 21% 

Remaining budget £12,534,435     

 
Additional funding streams 

Anniversary programme: employability (20th anniversary budget uplift (40%)) 

2016/17 budget £1,600,000     

Carry forward 2015/16 (subject to 
approval) £1,200,000     

Spend at previous meetings   £0   

Recommended spend today   £0   

Total spend   £0   

Balance £2,800,000     

Anniversary programme: infrastructure support (20th anniversary budget uplift 
(40%)) 

2016/17 budget £1,600,000     

Carry forward 2015/16 (subject to 
approval) £850,000     

Spend at previous meetings   £0   

Recommended spend today   £0   

Total spend   £0   

Balance £2,450,000     

Annual funding for Prince's Trust funding (agreed Oct 14) 

Budget £1,000,000     

Total spend   £1,000,000   

Balance £0     
 

   
26. Table 2 shows the grant awards you have made this financial year under 

Investing in Londoners and today’s recommendations by programme.  Charts 
1 and 2 show the proportion of grants awarded for each programme by 
number of grants and value of grants respectively1. 

                                                           
1
 Making London More Inclusive excludes access audits which are shown separately. 

Page 30



Table 2: Investing in Londoners awards and recommendations by programme 

 

 Value of Grants No. of Grants 

Fund/Program Today Total Today Total 

English for Speakers of 
Other Languages 

£119,390 £119,390 2 2 

Improving Londoners' 
Mental Health 

£565,420 £565,420 6 6 

Improving London's 
Environment 

£0 £0 0 0 

Making London More 
Inclusive (ex. Access 
Audits) 

£402,050 £402,050 5 5 

Making London Safer £220,000 £220,000 1 1 

Older Londoners £661,400 £661,400 6 6 

Reducing Poverty £781,300 £781,300 6 6 

Resettlement and 
Rehabilitation of 
Offenders 

£0 £0 0 0 

Stepping Stones £0 £0 0 0 

Strengthening London's 
Voluntary Sector 

£348,370 £348,370 4 4 

Strategic Initiatives £154,535 £154,805 9 9 

Arts Apprenticeships £0 £0 0 0 

Eco-audits £2,600 £2,600 1 1 

Access Audits £8,080 £10,230 4 4 

Grand total £3,263,145 £3,265,565 44 44 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 31



 
 

 
 
 
 
 

4.5% 

13.6% 

0.0% 

11.4% 

2.3% 

13.6% 

13.6% 

0.0% 

0.0% 

9.1% 

20.5% 

0.0% 

2.3% 

9.1% 

0 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10

English for Speakers of Other Languages

Improving Londoners' Mental Health

Improving London's Environment

Making London More Inclusive

Making London Safer

Older Londoners

Reducing Poverty

Resettlement & Rehabilitation of Offenders

Stepping Stones

Strengthening London's Voluntary Sector

Strategic Initiatives

Arts Apprenticeships

Eco-audits

Access Audits

Chart 1: % grants awarded by outcome area this 
financial year (by number of grants) 

3.7% 

17.3% 

0.0% 

12.3% 

6.7% 

20.3% 

23.9% 

0.0% 

0.0% 

10.7% 

4.7% 

0.0% 

0.1% 

0.3% 

£0 £200,000 £400,000 £600,000 £800,000 £1,000,000

English for Speakers of Other Languages

Improving Londoners' Mental Health

Improving London's Environment

Making London More Inclusive

Making London Safer

Older Londoners

Reducing Poverty

Resettlement & Rehabilitation of Offenders

Stepping Stones

Strengthening London's Voluntary Sector

Strategic Initiatives

Arts Apprenticeships

Eco-audits

Access Audits

Chart 2: % grants awarded by outcome area this 
financial year (by grant amount) 

Page 32



27. Chart 3  shows the flow of applications received over the last year and action 
taken, allowing any seasonal variations to be seen. This excludes Strategic 
Initiatives as they are usually solicited rather than open programmes. 

 

 
 
 
28. Between March 2015 and the end of March 2016 435 applications were 

received for the Investing in Londoners programmes. 125 applications have 
been approved and 132 declined (the remainder are pending).  The spike in 
applications seen in November 2015 is caused by the closing date for the first 
round of the Stepping Stones Fund.  Otherwise applications are fairly evenly 
spread across the year, which is comparable to previous years. 

 
29. Officers are asking you to consider 80 applications at this meeting. Of these, 

26 are recommended for a grant and 18 are reported at this meeting as 
having been approved under the scheme of delegations.  A further 22 are 
recommended for rejection.  12 applications have been withdrawn by 
applicants and 2 have been lapsed following several unsuccessful attempts 
by officers for further information.  (see Table 3 below). 

 
 
 
 
 

Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar

2015 2016

Grand Total 27 27 24 32 27 33 23 31 67 27 23 36 30

Today's meeting 1 0 0 3 1 1 1 5 10 15 10 16 8

Pending 2 0 0 2 1 2 4 1 7 6 9 18 21

Declined 15 11 5 17 13 19 13 11 30 3 1 0 0

Approved 9 16 19 10 12 11 5 14 20 3 3 2 1

27 27 
24 

32 

27 

33 

23 

31 

67 

27 
23 

36 

30 

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

70

Chart 3: Applications received and action taken 
since March 2015 

Today's meeting

Pending

Declined

Approved

Page 33



 
 
Table 3: Action to be taken on applications today 
 

Investing in Londoner's applications     

Action to be taken  Number Amount 

Applications recommended for grant to Committee 26 £2,952,940 

Funding approved by delegated authority up to £10,000 (to 
note)  8 £29,090 

Funding approved by delegated authority from £10,001 - 
£25,000 (to note)  6 £131,435 

Funding approved by delegated authority from £25,001 - 
£50,000 (to note) 4 £152,100 

Applications recommended for rejection 22 n/a 

Withdrawn applications (to note) 12 n/a 

Applications lapsed (to note) 2 n/a 

      

Total Investing in Londoners applications 80 £3,265,565 

Additional funding stream applications 0 £0 

 
 
 
 
David Farnsworth 
Chief Grants Officer 
T: 020 7332 3713 
E: david.farnsworth@cityoflondon.gov.uk 
 

Page 34

mailto:david.farnsworth@cityoflondon.gov.uk


Investing in Londoners 
 Index of Grant Recommendations 

 

 Ref Requested Recommended 

 No. Organisation Amount Amount 

 
 English for Speakers of Other Languages 

 a) 13139 St Clement and St James £129,193 £94,500 

 Community Development Project 

 Total English for Speakers of Other Languages £129,193 £94,500 

 

 Improving Londoners' Mental Health 

 b) 13288 British Refugee Council £112,037 £112,000 

 c) 13071 Community Activities Project £91,087 £91,000 

 Ealing - CAPE 

 d) 13282 Nafsiyat Intercultural Therapy £98,837 £98,850 

 Centre 

 e) 12930 Thames Reach Housing £154,814 £90,000 

 Association Limited 

 f) 13231 The Log Cabin £62,363 £62,300 

 g) 13039 Together for Mental Wellbeing £115,188 £111,270 

 Total Improving Londoners' Mental Health £634,326 £565,420 

 

 Making London More Inclusive 

 h) 13204 Limes Community and Children's £119,763 £119,850 

 Centre 

 i) 13212 Poetry Society £100,000 £100,000 

 j) 13246 Sycamore Trust U.K. £112,006 £112,100 

 Total Making London More Inclusive £331,769 £331,950 

 

 Making London Safer 

 k) 13273 Women's Resource Centre £243,583 £220,000 

 Total Making London Safer £243,583 £220,000 

 

Page 35

Agenda Item 11



Investing in Londoners 
 Index of Grant Recommendations 

 Ref Requested Recommended 

 No. Organisation Amount Amount 

 

 Older Londoners 

 l) 13347 Age Exchange Theatre Trust £96,649 £96,700 

 m) 13203 Age Concern Brent £102,278 £102,400 

 n) 13138 Attend £120,000 £120,000 

 o) 13235 Centre 404 £119,777 £119,800 

 p) 13137 Redbridge Carers Support Service £136,144 £136,200 

 q) 13189 The Parochial Church Council Of £86,295 £86,300 

 The Ecclesiastical Parish Of St. 
 Luke's Oseney Crescent 

 Total Older Londoners £661,143 £661,400 

 

 Reducing Poverty 

 r) 13222 Ealing Law Centre £180,000 £155,400 

 s) 13219 Home-Start Barnet £77,272 £75,000 

 t) 13201 Mary Ward Legal Centre £125,808 £125,800 

 u) 13193 Paddington Law Centre £165,300 £165,300 

 v) 13156 St Hilda's East £117,000 £117,000 

 w) 13190 Waltham Forest CAB £139,272 £142,800 

 Total Reducing Poverty £804,652 £781,300 

 

 Strengthening London's Voluntary Sector 

 x) 13234 Reach Volunteering £90,000 £90,000 

 y) 13224 StreetGames £148,057 £123,170 

 z) 13191 Voluntary Action Harrow £81,250 £85,200 

 Total Strengthening London's Voluntary Sector £319,307 £298,370 

  

Grand Totals £3,123,973 £2,952,940 

Page 36



Page 37

Agenda Item 11a



Page 38



Page 39

Agenda Item 11b



Page 40



Page 41

Agenda Item 11c



Page 42



Page 43

Agenda Item 11d



Page 44



Page 45

Agenda Item 11e



Page 46



Page 47

Agenda Item 11f



Page 48



Page 49

Agenda Item 11g



Page 50



Page 51

Agenda Item 11h



Page 52



Page 53

Agenda Item 11i



Page 54



Page 55

Agenda Item 11j



Page 56



Page 57

Agenda Item 11k



Page 58



Page 59



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 60



Page 61

Agenda Item 11l



Page 62



Page 63



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 64



Page 65

Agenda Item 11m



Page 66



Page 67

Agenda Item 11n



Page 68



Page 69

Agenda Item 11o



Page 70



Page 71

Agenda Item 11p



Page 72



Page 73

Agenda Item 11q



Page 74



Page 75

Agenda Item 11r



Page 76



Page 77

Agenda Item 11s



Page 78



Page 79

Agenda Item 11t



Page 80



Page 81

Agenda Item 11u



Page 82



Page 83

Agenda Item 11v



Page 84



Page 85

Agenda Item 11w



Page 86



Page 87

Agenda Item 11x



Page 88



Page 89

Agenda Item 11y



Page 90



Page 91



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 92



Page 93

Agenda Item 11z



Page 94



Committee: 
 

Date: 
 

The City Bridge Trust Committee  
 

24 May 2016 

Subject: 
Applications recommended for rejection 

Public 
 

Report of: 
Chief Grants Officer 
 

For Decision 
 

 
Summary 

 

This report and the accompanying schedule outlines a total of 22 grant 
applications or Eco-Audit requests that, for the reason(s) identified, are 
recommended for rejection.  

 
Recommendation 

 

 Members are asked to: 
 

 Reject the grant applications detailed in the accompanying schedule 
 
 

Main Report 
 

1. There are a total of 22 applications recommended for rejection at this 
meeting. They are listed within categories in the accompanying 
schedule. In each case the “purpose” that is used to describe the 
application is that provided by the applicant organisation. All the 
recommendations are based on criteria set out in your Policy Guidance.  

 

2. Copies of these application forms are available to view in the Members’ 
Reading Room. If any Committee Member wishes to query any of the 
recommendations, this can either be done at the meeting, in which case 
the decision may be deferred while full details are provided to the 
Member concerned, or by contacting the Trust office in advance of the 
meeting so that an explanation can be provided prior to or at the 
meeting.  
 

 
 
 
Ciaran Rafferty 
Principal Grants Officer 
T: 020 7332 3186 
E: ciaran.rafferty@cityoflondon.gov.uk 

Page 95

Agenda Item 12a

mailto:ciran.rafferty@cityoflondon.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank

Page 96



 CBT IiL Recommended for Rejection 
 The City Bridge Trust Committee - 24th May 2016 

 Summary of Recommendations for Rejection - Investing in Londoners 

 Ref & Purpose Reason for Amount  Grants Officer 

 Organisation  Recommendation for Rejection Requested & Area 
 English for Speakers of Other Languages 

 13244 Develop improved levels of This is a very small organisation with no £214,593 CR 
 Bexley Trust for Adult communicative proficiency and paid staff and where the annual request is Bexley 
 Students (BTAS) confidence for low income local for more than 15 times their total income. 
 residents with low levels of English by 
 motivating an 

 13296 SPT, tackling poverty in the culturally The focus of the application is ESOL to £66,000 CR 
 Shaarei Parnosoh segregated Charedi(Orthodox support men (only) into employment and, as Hackney 
 Toiva Jewish)community by improving skills & such, does not meet your priorities. 
 finding job opportunities, will provide 
 English language instruction as  basis 
 towards employability. 

 13253 Head Start ESOL project for A poorly presented application which does £38,445 TB 
 Weavers Community marginalised women. not address barriers to attending ESOL Tower Hamlets 
 Forum classes identified by prospective 
 beneficiaries, and delivery plans fall short of 
 standards expected under this programme. 

 Total English for Speakers of Other Languages (3 items) £319,038 

P
age 97



 Ref & Purpose Reason for Amount  Grants Officer 

 Organisation  Recommendation for Rejection Requested & Area 
 Improving Londoners' Mental Health 

 13241 To develop the work of the Baobab The applicant has applied before 3 years £112,500 JGC 
 Baobab Centre for Centre in improving the mental health of have elapsed since their last grant, and so is Islington 
 Young Survivors in young unaccompanied asylum-seekers not eligible for funding as this grant is for a 
 Exile who have experienced extreme trauma similar purpose. 
 and interpersonal violence. 

 13275 We are requesting £100k for building Proposal fails to meet your criteria in several £280,000 CR 
 Skills & Care CIC improvements and access to our Centre ways, being as it is a request for both capital Greenwich 
 , 3 years salary for: and revenue and for an amount equivalent 
 1.centre manager @45k p.a to at least 3 times annual turnover. 
 2.project corodinator @15k p.a 

 Total Improving Londoners' Mental Health (2 items) £392,500 

 

 Making London More Inclusive 

 13227 A contribution towards new lifts to The building is owned by Ealing Council, £100,000 JXM 
 Pitzhanger Manor & improve access to all public areas of the which will undertake the capital works prior Ealing 
 Gallery Trust building as part of the restoration of to transferring building management to a 
 Pitzhanger Manor and Gallery. charitable trust (the applicant). Your Trust 
 cannot fund a local authority to carry out its 
 statutory duty in regard to disabled access. 

 13007 Occupational Therapist to help people Occupational therapy is accessed either £142,917 JXM 
 Saint Francis Hospice at end-of-life maintain independence, through the NHS or the local council (where Havering 
 dignity, choice and control over their eligibility is determined in relation to the 
 lives by teaching new ways of Care and Support Regulations 2014). As it 
 completing everyday activities. is, therefore, the responsibility of statutory 
 agencies, it is not appropriate for the Trust 
 to cover some or all of the costs involved. 

P
age 98



 Ref & Purpose Reason for Amount  Grants Officer 

 Organisation  Recommendation for Rejection Requested & Area 
 13280 We are seeking funds for an access The organisation has not provided evidence £1,200 SD 
 The Parochial Church audit as part of refurbishment plans to of any significant non-religious work with the Hammersmith & 
 Council Of The meet growing service demands and community as all activities undertaken are Fulham 
 Ecclesiastical Parish accommodate regular visitors who are focused on promoting religion. The proposal 
 Of St Peter, Fulham disabled. therefore falls outside your scope for 
 support. 

 Total Making London More Inclusive (3 items) £244,117 

 

 Making London Safer 

 13254 To break the silence on domestic A comparatively high request in relation to £67,500 CR 
 Afghan Association of violence, psychological pressure and the organisation's history of income. The Harrow 
 London (Harrow) emotional blackmail and to help the proposal focuses on a specialist area of 
 Afghan women sufferers to rebuild their work, but the organisation, in its application, 
 lives. does not demonstrate the expertise or track 
 record that would be expected. 

 13285 Participatory, performing arts based This application to provide creative £32,892 TB 
 Chicken Shed Theatreprojects to support children living in workshops for children living in refuges does Enfield 
 Trust refuges whose lives have been not sufficiently match the outcome of 
 disrupted and derailed by domestic enabling children to address the trauma 
 violence. stemming from experiences of violence and 
 dislocation arising from domestic violence. 

 13271 Addressing and tacking HATE CRIMES An application under your Making London £34,590 CR 
 Waltham Forest Racialthrough awareness and engagement for Safer programme, but where the work Waltham Forest 
 Equality Council positive interaction between individuals, proposed is unlikely to deliver the outcomes 
 (WFREC) communities and wider society required as too much of it is concerned with 
 promoting trust, respect and common delivering community events. 
 understanding; 

 Total Making London Safer (3 items) £134,982 

P
age 99



 Ref & Purpose Reason for Amount  Grants Officer 

 Organisation  Recommendation for Rejection Requested & Area 
 Older Londoners 

 13236 To seek funding for our ClubCare The job description to which you are asked £40,014 JGC 
 All Souls Clubhouse scheme  supporting housebound older to contribute includes a requirement Westminster 
 people in Westminster connected with the promotion of religion and 
 is therefore ineligible for funding. The 
 organisation has a low level of reserves and 
 has returned a deficit for the past 4 years. 

 13281 Through knitting, provide opportunities Some of the proposed beneficiaries for this £296,000 SFJ 
 Charities Advisory to become and remain active, avoid project fall outside your criteria, whilst the Camden 
 Trust social isolation and depression, enjoy organisation holds free reserves equivalent 
 better health, feel more resilient and to 2 years' expenditure. 
 useful by helping others. 

 13261 To fund 50% of the cost of employing Organisation, at time of applying, held free £21,000 SAR 
 Croydon 60+ Club our manager for three years. reserves equivalent to 2.3 years' Croydon 
 expenditure, which your officer deems 
 sufficient to support self-funding of this 
 project. 

 13300 We want to deliver a weekly timetable of Unlike some other hospital charities, this £132,627 CR 
 CW+ participatory art workshops for older one's constitution does not make a clear Kensington & 
 Londoners on hospital wards to improve separation between its function and that of Chelsea 
 well-being. the NHS. This application is focused on 
 providing services for inpatients and which, 
 given the above, may not be sufficiently 
 distinct from statutory. In addition, the 
 charity holds nearly £20 million in cash in 
 investment funds against annual 
 expenditure of c. £3m 

P
age 100



 Ref & Purpose Reason for Amount  Grants Officer 

 Organisation  Recommendation for Rejection Requested & Area 
 
 13223 To increase the quality of life of Older Organisation presented inadequate £96,009 CR 
 South Harrow Londoners in our community & aim to governing documents to support the Trust's Harrow 
 Christian Fellowship support them to live independent & funding (i.e. no dissolution clause). Whilst a 
 fulfilled life with dignity. small organisation, it holds a year's worth of 
 expenditure in its free reserves. Proposed 
 project does not meet the age criteria for 
 your Older Londoners programme. 

 13243 We would like to run 12 support group The organisation's reserves policy is to hold £60,000 CR 
 St George's Hospital meetings a year for patients with young £5m in general free reserves - which Wandsworth 
 Charity onset dementia and their supporters equates to 2x annual expenditure and, as 
 such, is generous. Its most recent accounts 
 show free unrestricted reserves held of 
 £5,8m. There is therefore ample scope to 
 self-fund this project. 

 13207 to fund a support worker and activities Following analysis of the organisation's £99,000 ODX 
 St Luke's Trust to extend the range of support and unrestricted funds, which are considerable, Islington 
 Parochial Trust services available to older people aged it is clear that there is sufficient scope for 
 75+ this project to be self-funded. Unrestricted 
 funds, which are currently free or could be 
 readily available if required, amount to 
 £3.7m or 2 years' worth of expenditure. 

 Total Older Londoners (7 items) £744,650 

 

 Reducing Poverty 

 13336 We are seeking funding to match fund Proposal, from an organisation with negative £52,000 CR 
 Causeway Irish our tenant led furniture restoration free reserves, is for employment/ skills Haringey 
 Housing Association project. training and, as such, falls outside your 
 priorities. 

P
age 101



 Ref & Purpose Reason for Amount  Grants Officer 

 Organisation  Recommendation for Rejection Requested & Area 
 13335 To support a legal advice programme in Funds are sought towards the production of £15,220 CR 
 Legal Action Group employment law for low waged an app. to advise people on employment City 
 Londoners. law. Whilst in theory it will be aimed at low 
 income groups in London, its benefit cannot 
 be restricted to your target groups and/ or 
 geographical area. The organisation holds 
 no cash reserves. 

 Total Reducing Poverty (2 items) £67,220 

 Resettlement and Rehabilitation of Offenders 

 13276 To increase the numbers of young The applicant does not present a clear and £350,867 JXM 
 Feltham Community ex-offenders we work with at HMYOIs convincing case for funding as project Hounslow 
 Chaplaincy Trust Feltham and Isis so that greater evaluation does not provide demonstrable 
 numbers can be successfully and evidence of impact in relation to reduction in 
 sustainably resettled. re-offending nor improved mental health as 
 required under your programme criteria. 

 Total Resettlement and Rehabilitation of Offenders (1 item) £350,867 

 Strengthening London's Voluntary Sector 

 13206 The costs of managing volunteering A request for the Trust to be the main funder £66,000 TW 
 StoneCrabs opportunities for school leavers within for a project that seeks to increase volunteer Lewisham 
 performing arts, acting and specific opportunities for young BME adults in the 
 theatre settings and individual vs theatre sector. The proposed work does not 
 sectoral impact of this work. place sufficient emphasis on developing 
 organisational capacity to manage 
 volunteers, which is a key expectation of 
 your programme to strengthen London's 
 VCS, and therefore fails to meet your 
 priorities. 
 Total Strengthening London's Voluntary Sector (1 item) £66,000 

  

Grand Totals (22 items) £2,319,374 

P
age 102



Committee Date: 
 

The City Bridge Trust Committee 
 

24 May 2016 

Subject: 
Grants/expenditure considered under Delegated 
Authority 

Public 
 

Report of: 
Chief Grants Officer 
 

For Information 
 

 
Recommendation 

 

 Members are asked to: 
 

 Receive this report and note its contents 
 

Main Report 
 

Following the approval of the Court of Common Council on 16th October 2014, the 
Chief Grants Officer may make decisions on applications of up to £10,000. Decisions 
on applications of over £10,000 and up to £25,000 may be approved by the Chief 
Grants Officer in consultation with the Chairman and Deputy Chairman.  
 

Decisions on applications of over £25,000 and up to £50,000 may be approved by 
the Chief Grants Officer in consultation with the Chairman and Deputy Chairman, 
with reference to the Chamberlain. 
 

1 of the items below is for the costs of an eco-audit, where no monies are paid to the 
recipient organisation, rather the funds approved are used by the Trust to 
commission and appoint qualified professionals to undertake an individual audit for 
the named charity. 
 

The total amount of expenditure and number of items approved under delegated 
authority this financial year (inclusive of those below) are shown in Table 1. 
 
Requests < £10k  
 
Community Action Southwark £4,000 to enable research to be commissioned 

that will provide an evidence base of the most 
pressing unmet, and potentially emerging, need in 
Southwark in order to inform the development of 
Southwark Giving. 
 

The Social Innovation 
Partnership 

£7,560 towards the project management, pre-
event research, half-day roundtable and 
roundtable write up of TSIP’s Mental Health 
Evidence Hub. 
 

  
Havelock Family Centre £4,340 to meet the cost of an access audit 

Page 103

Agenda Item 12b



including design appraisal and the subsequent 
amendment of architectural drawings. 

 
St John the Evangelist Church, 
Kingston 

 
£2,300 towards an access audit for the main 
church building and church hall of St John the 
Evangelist Church in Kingston. 

 
St John's Church Chelsea 

 
£1,440 to meet the cost of a two day access audit 
at St John Church Chelsea.  

  
Islington Boat Club (IBC) £2,600 (6.5 days @£400 per day) to provide an 

eco-audit.  
 

Age UK Croydon £2,150 to commission an independent access 
audit for 81 Brigstock Road, Croydon 
 

Volunteer Centre Greenwich £4,700 towards a volunteering database and 
online platform. 
 

 
Requests £10k - £25k 
 

City Bridge Trust £24,745 to commission Rocket Science to carry 
out a Philanthropy Review to look back at the 
various strands of work supported by the Trust to 
encourage more giving and to make 
recommendations for the Trust’s future strategic 
direction in this arena. 

  
Inclusion Barnet £23,800 towards the development of a new local 

giving scheme, Barnet Giving, as part of London's 
Giving. 
 

New Local Government 
Network 

£18,000 to enable strategic dialogue between 
local government and the wider funding 
community, in the context of public sector funding 
reductions, in partnership with London Funders.  
 

Prisoners Abroad A one-off grant of £20,000 towards additional 
rental costs 

  
Education & Skills 
Development Group (ESDEG) 

£24,890 over three years (£8,430; £8,230; £8,230) 
towards ESOL classes to parents of  
the supplementary school participants – 2 tutors 
for 3 hours per week each for 40 weeks and 
associated running costs.     

 
Centre for London 

 
£20,000 to Centre for London to support the 
scoping research into London’s capacity for civic 
innovation. The grant is conditional on other 

Page 104



funding being secured to enable the project to be 
viable.    

Requests £25k - £50  
  
Council of Somali 
Organisations 

£50,000 as a final contribution towards the part-
time salaries of a Business and Membership 
Development Officer (0.6 FTE) and a Research 
and Development Officer (0.4 FTE), subject to 
receipt of signed and satisfactory accounts for the 
17 month period to 31 March 2015. 

  
Dyscover Ltd £40,100 (£6,650; £13,100; £20,350) towards the 

salary costs of Speech and Language Therapists 
and assistants and oncosts of a program of 
support services for people with asphasia and 
their families in Kingston-upon-Thames. 
 

Parchmore Methodist Church, 
Youth & Community Centre 

A grant of £30,000 for the installation of a platform 
lift. 
 

London Funders To provide bridging funding of £32,000 for 
London's Giving from May 2016 to December 
2016 
 

  

  
 
 
Table 1 – Funds approved under delegated authority in financial year to date. 
 
 

  

Applications 
reported to 
Committee 

< £10k  
  

£10k - £25k 
  

£25k - £50k 

  £ No. £ No. £ No. 

May 2016 £29,090 8 £131,435 6 £152,100 4 

Total for year to 
date 

£29,090 8 £131,435 6 £152,100 4 

 
 
 
 
 
Ciaran Rafferty 
Principal Grants Officer 
T: 020 7332 3186 
E: ciaran.rafferty@cityoflondon.gov.uk] 

Page 105

mailto:ciran.rafferty@cityoflondon.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank

Page 106



Committee 
 

Date: 
 

The City Bridge Trust Committee 
 

24 May 2016 

Subject: 
Withdrawn & Lapsed applications 

Public 
 

Report of: 
Chief Grants Officer 
 

For Information 
 

 
Summary 

 
This report informs Members of applications received which subsequently have been 
withdrawn by the applicant, or lapsed due to the absence of the information required 
to undertake a full assessment. 
 

Recommendation 
 
 Members are asked to: 
 

 Receive this report and note its contents 
 

 

Main Report 
 
 
Organisation        Purpose of Request 
 
Withdrawn Applications: 
 
Afghan Association Paiwand  “The create City and Guilds accredited ESOL 

classes for 300 disadvantaged BME people over 3 
years.” 
 

 Organisation has withdrawn this request as it was 
submitted within the fallow period following a 
recent grant award.  
 

Muswell Hill Methodist Church “To support local disadvantaged, non English 
speaking families to learn English providing a 
bridge to mainstream health, education, welfare 
and community services.” 
 

Application withdrawn as applicant wishes to 
submit a revised proposal  
 

Mary Dolly Foundation “Funding will provide a local, easily accessible 
confidential service for children/adults to attend in 
the event that they have experienced physical, 
emotional or sexual abuse.” 
 

The organisation has withdrawn the application 

Page 107

Agenda Item 12c



pending the outcome of other funding bids for the 
same work.  
 

CASPA “CASPA seeks two years funding for the 
organisation to carry out the essential planning & 
development for growth and sustainability of its 
unique services.” 
 

This application was written by a freelance 
fundraiser and is pitched too ambitiously as an 
organisational development project, which is not a 
match to your funding criteria. The Director has 
decided to withdraw and rework an application 
herself, working closely to your funding guidelines. 

  
Heart n Soul “Supporting our Youth Programme, enabling 

young people with learning disabilities to develop 
leadership, skills and creativity, grow connections, 
build confidence and lead more independent 
lives.” 
 

This application has been submitted within 3 years 
of the applicant's former CBT grant and therefore 
is not eligible at this time. The application has 
withdrawn its application and intends to resubmit 
once 3 years have elapsed. 
 

Toynbee Hall “To make Toynbee Hall an inclusive, accessible 
community building for disabled people to learn, 
seek support, volunteer, live independently and 
gain employment.” 
 

The application is part of a capital programme 
exceeding £10 million, and is therefore ineligible 
under your criteria. Your officers advised the 
organisation to withdraw this application as there 
are other pressing revenue needs which the Trust 
could support at a later stage. 
 

Integrated Neurological 
Services 

“Enable older people suffering long term 
neurological conditions and their carers to 
maintain independent living and increase 
confidence and ability to engage in community 
activities.” 
 
The organisation sought advice on the content of 
the application and of the Trust's rules on repeat 
funding. Having given further consideration to the 
content and timing of its bid, the charity wishes to 
withdraw its application with a view to making a 
new submission at a later date. 

Page 108



 
My Life Films “We plan to roll out our free service to other 

London Boroughs and need funding for 
filmmakers to produce the biographical films for 
Older Londoners.” 
 
The organisation has withdrawn the application 
after discussion with your officer. 

 
Nubian Life Resource Centre “Development of a Dementia Gateway raising 

awareness, dispelling stereotypes through support 
in to services and activities which older BAME 
communities have historically been excluded 
from.” 
 
The organisation has asked to withdraw the 
application so that it can submit a revised 
proposal. 

 
Royal Trinity Hospice “Trinity's Volunteer Befriending Service will 

provide vital support to patients' with a 
progressive, life-limiting illness' living in Trinity's 
central and south west London community.” 
 
Applicant has withdrawn as applications have 
been successful for funding for the project from 
the Department of Health and the Royal Borough 
of Kensington and Chelsea. 

 
Volunteer Centre Lewisham “LOVE IT will develop online training for volunteer 

engaging organisations to increase access, 
affordability and sustainability of the service.” 
 
Following a meeting with your officer, the 
applicant wishes to withdraw its proposal. A 
revised application is anticipated. 

 
Kew Community Trust “Provide transport and a trained carer so that the 

frailest members of our Club can come in to meet 
friends and enjoy a hot lunch.” 
 
Organisation has secured funding for this project 
for 2016/17 and will likely reapply at a later date 

 
 
 
Lapsed Applications  
 
Age UK Haringey “Strengthen the role of specialist volunteering for 

Age UK Haringey and other community 

Page 109



organisations to reduce social isolation resulting 
from ill health and/or  disability.” 
 
Soon after submitting this application, the 
organisation contacted the Trust to say that it was 
closing. 

 
 
Vine United Reformed Church  Eco -Audit 

 

Requests for information needed in order to 
undertake a full assessment have remained 
unanswered. 

 
 
 
Ciaran Rafferty 
Principal Grants Officer 
 

T: 020 7332 3186 
E: ciaran.rafferty@cityoflondon.gov.uk] 

 

Page 110

mailto:ciran.rafferty@cityoflondon.gov.uk


Committee 
 

Date: 
 

The City Bridge Trust Committee 
 

24 May 2016 

Subject: 
Review of eligibility cap on capital requests 
 

Public 
 

Report of: 
Chief Grants Officer 
 

For Decision 

 
Summary 

 
Following a request by your Committee this report reviews the appropriateness of 
the current £10m eligibility threshold on the total cost of redevelopments in relation to 
your funding for capital, access, works. 
 

Recommendation 
That the current threshold of £10m for the total cost of building developments eligible 
to be considered for a capital grant should remain at 10m and that it be reviewed 
again as part of the next Quinquennial Review. 
 

Main Report 
 

Background 
 

1. The Trust funds capital and revenue, though usually not both at the same 
 time. In certain circumstances (eg where all of an organisation’s work meets 
 your priorities) you are able to contribute to the general capital costs of a 
 redevelopment or refurbishment. Most of your capital funding, however, is for 
 costs directly related to improving access for disabled people and is 
 conditional on those works being informed by an independent access audit. 
 

2. Your policy states that you can award up to £100,000 for works which are part 
 of a redevelopment or refurbishment of an existing building (not stand-
 alone, new build); and that the total cost of such redevelopments usually must 
 not exceed £10m. At your meeting in January 2016 officers were asked to 
 explore whether or not this cap of £10m was still appropriate. 
 

3. Providing capital funding for access works has been an extremely successful 
 and valuable programme for disabled Londoners and, from the earliest days 
 of the Trust, has enabled hundreds of community buildings and services to be 
 more inclusive. When you first agreed your current policies, following the last 
 Quinquennial Review in 2013, you set a threshold of £5m on the full cost of 
 redevelopments. The principle behind the threshold was to target your funds 
 at smaller, local, developments which were more likely to serve local 
 communities and which, by their nature, would find it harder to raise the 
 necessary funds than would the larger, regional or national, organisations 
 which, in most cases, could call upon professional fundraising staff and would 
 be more likely to offer services to significant numbers of non-Londoners. 
 

Page 111

Agenda Item 12d



Current Position 
 

4. A year after the introduction of your current Investing in Londoners 
 programmes in late 2013 you undertook a mini-review of how the new 
 programmes were faring in their application. A number of elements for fine-
 tuning were then agreed by your Committee and ratified by Court in October 
 2014. 
 

5. One of these elements included the increase of the threshold of £5m to one of 
 £10m. This was to take account of the general and not insignificant increase 
 in building costs since the lower threshold was first considered and because 
 an increasing number of local, community-based, schemes were struggling to 
 be eligible. 
 

6. Whilst the current £10m threshold has rendered some applications ineligible, 
 analysis of applications made to the Trust shows that this has affected no 
 more than 10% of bids. Indeed, the threshold is not applied strictly to the letter 
 of the law in that your policy states that £10m is the threshold that is normally 
 considered. Developments a little in excess of this or with a sound,
 exceptional, reason may have their application considered. 
 

7. Your officers have also consulted the Centre for Accessible Environments 
 where, you will recall, you have funded the post of Access & Sustainability 
 Advisor for several years and whose job it is to provide advice and guidance 
 to potential applicants and those seeking information on good practice, etc. 
 The Advisor has confirmed that there have been few enquiries (again no more 
 than 10%) made of them for developments in excess of £10m. 
 
Proposal 
 

8. Given that your policy is to support improved access to community  buildings 
 of benefit to Londoners and that this policy has excluded comparatively few 
 schemes, it is proposed that the current threshold remains. It is also sensible 
 to maintain the status quo in view of the fact that this policy, along with all 
 others, will be reconsidered when your next Quinquennial Review process 
 commences later this year. 
 
Conclusion 
 

That the current threshold of £10m for the total cost of building developments eligible 
to be considered for a capital grant should remain at 10m and that it be reviewed 
again as part of the next Quinquennial Review. 
 

Appendices 
None 
 
 

Ciaran Rafferty 
Principal Grants Officer 
T: 020 7332 3186 
E: ciaran.rafferty@cityoflondon.gov.uk 

Page 112

mailto:ciaran.rafferty@cityoflondon.gov.uk


Committee 
 

Date: 
 

The City Bridge Trust Committee 
 

24 May 2016 

Subject: 
Future of London’s Voluntary Sector Infrastructure 
Support 
 

Public 
 

Report of: 
Chief Grants Officer 

For Information 
 

Report author: 
Deputy Chief Grants Officer 

 
Summary 

 
This report updates members on the outcome of the research that you 
commissioned into the future of infrastructure support for London’s voluntary section 
and outlines the proposed next steps.  
 

Recommendation 
 
Members are asked to note the report. 
 

Main Report 
 

Background 
 
1. In January 2015, NAVCA (National Association for Voluntary and Community 

Action) published its report, ‘Change for Good’, which called for a radical re-
think of how infrastructure support for the voluntary sector is provided, in the 
light of the quickening pace of social, political, economic and technological 
change.  By ‘infrastructure support’ we mean the provision of capacity building 
support (usually by second tier agencies) to voluntary organisations providing 
frontline services.  This tends to take three forms: 

 

 Generalist support (around issues such as governance, finance, fundraising, 
business planning) typically provided by local councils for voluntary service.   

 Promotion of good practice in volunteer management and involvement, 
typically provided by local volunteer centres. 

 Finally, specialist support.  This might be around a single topic such as 
property (for example, the Ethical Property Foundation) or around 
representation and voice (for example, Race on the Agenda or Children 
England). 
 

2. In response, officers have worked closely with London Funders together with 
London’s two key infrastructure bodies, London Voluntary Services Council 
(LVSC) and Greater London Volunteering (GLV) in looking at the future 
infrastructure needs of London’s voluntary sector. 

 

Page 113

Agenda Item 12e



3. In September 2015, you approved a grant of £5,000 to enable LVSC, GLV 
and London Funders to design a detailed project brief for research into 
London’s voluntary sector future infrastructure needs and how this might be 
resourced.  You then approved a further £50,000 to enable London Funders 
to commission this research.  

 
4. Following a competitive tendering process, Srabani Sen & Associates were 

appointed to undertake the work which commenced in September 2015. 
 
5. A reference group was set up to direct and inform the work comprising 

London Funders; LVSC and GLV (representing generalist infrastructure 
support); Race on the Agenda and Children England (representing specialist 
infrastructure support); LB Southwark (bringing a local authority perspective); 
Heart of the City (representing the private sector); Community Links (bringing 
the perspective of an end-user of infrastructure support); Rocket Science (a 
think tank with considerable relevant experience); Big Lottery Fund; and City 
Bridge Trust (represented by the Deputy Chief Grants Officer). 

 
6. Rather than use the term ‘infrastructure support’ which means little to most 

people (or conjures images of roads and sewers) it was decided to use ‘civil 
society support’ instead1. 

 
The Research 
 
7. The timetable for the research was tight to coincide with London Councils’ 

review of its four grant-making programmes, including its capacity building 
programme, all of which are due to end in March 2017. More is said about this 
review in paragraphs 10 - 12. 

 
8. The research comprised a mix of a literature review and a series of focus 

groups targeting voluntary front line service providers, civil society support 
voluntary organisations and local authorities respectively, as well as a series 
of meetings with the reference group. A conference was then held on 17th 
December 2015 to test the emerging findings of the research. 

 
9. Further consultation took place during the New Year and the final report, ‘The 

Way Ahead:  Civil Society at the Heart of London’ was launched at Guildhall 
on 13th April 2016. 

 
London Councils 
 
10. In December 2015, there was a meeting of the Leaders of London Council s.  

The findings of London Councils’ grants review, as outlined in paragraph 7 
were discussed and a motion was passed that agreed it was unlikely there 
would be continued support for a capacity building programme in the current 
economic climate. The Deputy Chairman abstained from this motion. 

 

                                                           
1
 The report defines ‘civil society’ as people taking action to improve their own lives or the lives of others and 

as acting where government or the private sector don’t. 

Page 114



11. It was then agreed by London Councils that a further period of consultation 
would take place until mid-January.  The Town Clerk wrote to all the borough 
Chief Executives to explore how the City of London Corporation, City Bridge 
Trust and local boroughs could work together to protect civil society support.  
This resulted in several boroughs making useful contact with the Chief Grants 
Officer in the early part of this year.  

 
12. At the March Grants Committee meeting of London Councils, it was agreed to 

drop the capacity building programme from April 2017.  However, it was also 
agreed that officers from London Councils would work with City Bridge Trust 
and London Funders in implementing the findings of ‘The Way Ahead’ and 
meetings are underway to discuss how this might play out in practice. 

 
The Findings of ‘The Way Ahead’ 
 
13. A key tenet of the report is that London’s communities and their needs should 

be at the heart of all civil support organisations and that communities should 
be encouraged to find their own solutions where possible.  It recommends that 
all sectors – private, public and voluntary - should work together to develop 
the support that frontline voluntary organisations need. 

 
14. It recommends that civil society support organisations adopt a ‘triage and 

connect’ approach to diagnose the issues faced by frontline volunteers, 
groups and organisations in order to match them to the most appropriate 
support which would come from a range of sources (be this private, public or 
voluntary sectors), rather than being confined to civil society support 
organisations. 

 
15. The report recognises that civil society support provision in London is 

currently patchy.  It proposes a ‘hub and spoke’ model for civil society support 
with a London Hub providing support at the pan-London level.  The report did 
not determine the structure of the London Hub which could be a formally 
constituted organisation or a virtual network of different organisations 
delivering different functions. The ‘spokes’ connect the central hub and local 
communities.  What a ‘spoke’ comprises will vary according to local conditions 
and could range from an individual community activist through to well-
established organisations (such as a council for voluntary service).   

 
16. It recommends that civil society support and independent funders should drive 

improvements in quality, based on peer support and challenge. 
 
17. In order to address the current patchiness of provision, the report calls on 

funders to work together to create a regional fund, partly to support the 
transition from existing civil society support provision to the new model but 
also to try and ensure that civil society support provision is more evenly 
distributed across London.  The report recommends that the London Hub, 
working with specialist support, develops standardised resources where 
possible which can be customised and used locally. 

 

Page 115



18. It identifies a role for the GLA to collate, analyse and provide data on the 
needs of London’s communities and civil society.  Data sharing across sectors 
is vital in enabling a shared understanding of need and information on policy 
developments and best practice. 

 
19. Finally, the report recommends that the GLA, elected representatives, London 

Councils and independent funders ensure that civil society is included in 
strategic planning and decision making about the future of London. 

 
Next Steps 
 
20. A number of ‘actions’ were announced at the April launch, the key of which 

are outlined below. 
 
21. The Reference Group will establish a Change Group to develop an action and 

implementation plan, together with a communications plan to disseminate the 
findings of The Way Ahead. 

 
22. Membership of the Change Group will include representatives from: 

 London Funders 

 LVSC 

 GLV 

 Local support organisations 

 Specialist support organisations 

 Independent funders 

 London Councils 

 GLA 

 Commissioners 

 Frontline organisations 
 
23. LVSC and GLV will each convene network meetings of their constituents 

(local councils for voluntary service and volunteer centres respectively) in 
order to discuss the report’s findings and agree how to move forward. 

 
24. Heart of the City will bring together businesses and business brokerage 

services to discuss how to take the recommendations of the review forward. 
 
25. London Funders will convene a meeting of independent funders to discuss the 

report’s findings and agree how to move forward. 
 
26. A meeting will be sought with the new Mayor of London to discuss the GLA’s 

engagement with the review and its recommendations. 
  

Page 116



Conclusion 
 
27. It is clear that the traditional infrastructure model of a council for voluntary 

service and a volunteer centre in every borough, complemented by specialist 
provision and regional representation is not sustainable in the current funding 
climate.   

 
28. The research team and the Reference Group started with the premise that the 

current funding climate has created an opportunity for a radical re-think of how 
civil society support is organised and how it can be improved.  Nevertheless, 
the report’s recommendations present a number of challenges. 

 
29. Making the transition from the current position to the hub and spoke model, 

for example, will not be easy and will need to be a gradual process, 
depending on local conditions.  There may be a need to pilot new approaches 
to deliver civil society support to establish what works and what does not. 

 
30. It is essential that funders work together in taking the recommendations of the 

report forward although this will not be without its challenges, especially if 
there is an appetite to establish a regional fund. 

 
31. Two key strengths of the report are that: 

 however civil society support is delivered in the future, it will have the needs 
of London’s communities at its heart 

 it proposes that the private, public and voluntary sectors work together to 
ensure that frontline voluntary organisations have the support they need. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Jenny Field 
Deputy Chief Grants Officer 
T: 020 7332 3715 
E: jenny.field@cityoflondon.gov.uk 
 

Page 117

mailto:jenny.field@cityoflondon.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank

Page 118



Committee 
 

Date:  
 

The City Bridge Trust Committee 
 

24 May 2016 

Subject: 
Report on monitoring visits 

Public 
 

Report of: 
Chief Grants Officer 
 

For Information 
 

 
Summary 

 
This report introduces reports from monitoring visits to New Cross Gate Trust 
and the East European Advice Centre. 
 

Recommendation 
 
Members are asked to receive this report and note its contents 

 
Main Report 

 
1. You receive monitoring visit reports at each of your meetings. These 

are in addition to more substantial bi-annual monitoring reports 
examining patterns of funding and benefit of grants awarded.  

 
2. The reports to this Committee are from visits to New Cross Gate 

Trust and the East European Advice Centre. The first award supports 
an organisation delivering English tuition to speakers of other 
languages. The second award was for advice and support services to 
vulnerable older people in mother tongue.  

 
 
 
Tim Wilson 
Principal Grants and Social Investment Officer 
 

T: 020 7332 3716 
E: tim.wilson@cityoflondon.gov.uk 

Page 119

Agenda Item 12f

mailto:tim.wilson@cityoflondon.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank

Page 120



1 

 

LEARNING VISIT REPORT 

East European Advice Centre 10996 

1.1 Date of visit: 

25/04/2016 

1.2 Name of visiting 

Grants Officer:  

Tim Wilson 

1.3 People met with: 

Barbara Drozdowicz 

(Director) and Dana 

Jozefkowicz (Welfare 

Advisor) 

1.4 Programme Area & Outcomes: 

Older Londoners - fewer older people with depression & more people reporting 

improved well-being 

1.5 Purpose of the award: 

£75,000 over three years (3 x £25,000) towards a part time Project Coordinator and 

associated running costs for a support service with isolated elderly East Europeans 

on the condition that the organisation can raise the balance of funding for the project. 

MONITORING INFORMATION 

2.1 Project Outcome 1: To expand the existing service to older people through 

recruitment of a p/t Project Coordinator to oversee ‘at home’ support services for 

elderly Eastern Europeans 

Progress made: Thanks to an outreach programme involving churches, other 

charities working with older people, statutory agencies, and (in time) word of mouth 

recommendations, EEAC faced steady demand for support from new clients who 

had not previously engaged with the charity. In the first year of delivery EEAC 

worked with 189 isolated older clients, in the second 104, and in the third 286.  

 

2.2 Project Outcome 2: To reduce the waiting time for older beneficiaries from three 

weeks to one  

Progress made: With only part time staff time available to run the programme, the 

charity used a network of volunteers to determine need, deliver support and respond 

to the high demand for support. The staff members spoken to during the visit 

provided several case examples illustrating the level of deprivation among the client 

population, much of it hidden from statutory bodies and other support providers 

because clients were unaware of where they could turn to for help. The case work 

was often described as emotionally draining, and the charity established a 

programme of supervision to support volunteers. 

 

2.3 Project Outcome 3: 450 older people from East European backgrounds who 

have experienced loneliness and isolation report a higher level of self-esteem and 

well-being at the end of three years 

Progress made: The charity exceeded its target beneficiary number, largely 

because demand for the service was higher than anticipated at time of application. 

The charity maintained good monitoring records throughout the project and gathered 

numerous testimonies from clients of the benefits arising from the support provided. 

Page 121



2 

 

However, EEAC is circumspect about the value of feedback from some clients for 

this service, noting that some caution is needed when reviewing comments from 

isolated and vulnerable service users. The charity recognised that many clients 

came to view the support provided as friendship and were hopeful of maintaining an 

ongoing relationship with the volunteer they had engaged with. As a result their 

praise was often effusive. The charity found it challenging to conclude interventions 

in all cases, especially where it was possible the client may not benefit from ongoing 

support from another source. The supervision process with volunteers helped here, 

but the project was often challenging. 

 

2.4 Project Outcome 4: 350 older people from East European backgrounds report 

easier access to healthcare and wellness activities, and greater access to the 

support and welfare benefits they are entitled to 

Progress made: EEAC gathered data on 1,437 casework interventions (some 

clients received more than one intervention). The majority of case provision centred 

on welfare, followed by housing, and together these accounted for 70% of the 

support delivered. From summer 2015 the charity noticed a significant rise in clients 

with mental health support needs which it could not attribute to a single causal factor, 

but noted the difficulty of helping these clients access appropriate NHS services. 

 

GRANT OFFICER COMMENTS 

EEAC’s programme for older, isolated people was a new service from a charity with 

an established client base of working age people who needed advice on employment 

rights, people at risk of homelessness or in substandard housing, and people 

struggling with abuse. The charity was successful in reaching a previously isolated 

client group who, by nature of their levels of poverty and limited access to support, 

received significant benefit from the intervention provided. 

 

The charity relied heavily on a strong network of first generation migrants who could 

deliver support in mother tongue. Holding the Advice Quality Standard, the 

programme was overseen professionally but the work was often emotionally 

draining, and EEAC needed to introduce a supervision programme to ensure that 

volunteers had the opportunity to discuss the difficult cases they were engaged with.   

 

Despite several applications the charity has not secured continuation funding and 

has concluded the programme. It hopes to re-start it in the future and is developing a 

cross-subsidy model whereby paid for services such as immigration advice and skills 

training might fund the delivery of work that cannot generate income.   

 

The charity suggested that City Bridge Trust develop a pro bono network of City 

firms who would be willing to deliver skilled support to relatively small charities such 

as EEAC. Reflecting positively on the funding provided, the charity noted that 

additional capacity building support would also be very welcome. 
 

Page 122



1 

 

LEARNING VISIT REPORT 

The New Cross Gate Trust (12139) 

1.1 Date of visit: 

 

04/03/2016 

1.2 Name of visiting 

Grants Officer:  

Jack Joslin 

1.3 People met with: 

Rosa Tomkinson 

Jill Mountford 

1.4 Programme Area & Outcomes: 

English for Speakers of Other Languages 

1.5 Purpose of the award: 

£63,500 over three years (£22,000; £21,000; £20,500) for salary costs of a part-time 

(2dpw) qualified ESOL Tutor plus running costs of a programme of ESOL classes up 

to and including Level 2. 

MONITORING INFORMATION 

2.1 Project Outcome 1: 

Participants will demonstrate improved English language skills along a continuum 

from Entry to Level 2. Classes will be certificated. 

Progress made: 

In 2014 the trust requested funds to employ an ESOL tutor to deliver 4 lessons per 

week, term time, up to Level 2.  I observed a Level 2 class many of whom had been 

attending since 2014.  The participants I observed had a good level of English and 

the tutor was supportive in helping each participant with the pronunciation of words 

and with expanding their practical vocabulary.   The class I attended had 7 

participants on the day. I was informed this should usually be 12 but they had a 

couple of drop outs and absences recently.  Rosa, the tutor, has a good rapport with 

the group and was sympathetic to their needs.  From my discussion with her 

afterwards she has seen a great improvement amongst this specific group since she 

began teaching them in 2014.  This class was working towards their Level 2 

certificate. 

2.2 Project Outcome 2: 

Participants will develop stronger social networks, make new friends, and feel able to 

come out of the house more, and try out new activities. 

Progress made: 

A big component of this project when the Trust applied in 2014 was to improve the 

social interaction amongst participants.  The way the ESOL programme is taught 

encourages participants to interact with each other through discussions and role 

play.  The group I observed all got on well and had good interactions with each 

other. The tutor informed me that participants had indicated that this course had 

improved their independence and from discussion with the students it felt like the 

course had allowed them to interact better with others in their community.  The Trust 

runs a variety of social events and programmes in their gardens that they offer to the 

ESOL participants to promote social interaction and try other activities. 

2.3 Project Outcome 3: 

Participants will develop the confidence and understanding of how to access local 

services, such as health services, employment support, benefit advice, council 

Page 123



2 

 

services, further education or even employment. 

Progress made: 

The ESOL programme is focused on improving participants’ knowledge of local 

services and how to access them.  Alongside conversational classroom based 

lessons they also take participants on trips to visit local services.  The session I 

attended had a guest speaker delivering a talk on environmental issues and helping 

participants understand how to approach recycling as a London resident.  From 

discussion with the tutor and coordinator it was clear that they focus their lessons on 

how to integrate in society and access services, they focus on improving their 

language so participants can gain confidence to progress once the course had 

finished.   

2.4 Project Outcome 4: 

Families will have a better understanding of the school system, and what is expected 

of parents to support their child's learning journey. 

Progress made: 

As mentioned above the lessons they provide focus on a range of day to day 

activities that allow participants to integrate better in the local community.  Some of 

the lessons involve trips to local schools and colleges and they provide 

conversational lessons to support the participants at parents evening.  They provide 

additional support and signposting to participants that require it. 

GRANT OFFICER COMMENTS 

From visiting the project and observing one of the classes it is clear that the 

organisation is delivering a good ESOL programme.  The tutor Rosa is very 

experienced and has a very good rapport with the class.  Being Brazilian herself she 

relates well to the participants who all come from a range of nationalities and 

backgrounds.  The classroom is based at the Trust’s Besson Street Community 

Garden which is a fantastic space surrounded by greenery. Although the main focus 

of the provision is on English language they also find that they need to deal with 

situations as they arise.  Some of the participants have difficult lives which require 

Rosa to provide additional support to participants from time to time.  The 

organisation is well linked to local services and signposts and refers participants to 

other services when necessary. I was satisfied that the organisation was delivering a 

good, well run ESOL programme and from discussions they are managing to deliver 

to more participants than expected since applying for your funding.   

 

As the programme is half-way through its funding we discussed how they will be 

looking to continue this project when funding ceases. In the initial assessment they 

mentioned that a Lewisham council were building a community facility near by which 

would be managed by the Trust.  This however has been delayed and the approval 

for the building only just been passed by Mayoral cabinet.  They anticipate the 

buildings to be finished by 2017 at the latest so will be looking elsewhere to ensure 

they can maintain this project. 

 

Page 124



Committee 
 

Date: 
 

The City Bridge Trust Committee 
 

24 May 2016 

Subject: 
Events attended 
 

Public 
 

Report of: 
Chief Grants Officer 
 

For Information 
 

 
Summary 

 
This report incorporates a schedule of the key meetings and events 
attended by Members and officers since your last meeting. 

 
Recommendation 

 
 Members are asked to: 
 

 Receive this report and note its contents 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Ciaran Rafferty 
Principal Grants Officer 
 

T: 020 7332 3186 
E: ciaran.rafferty@cityoflondon.gov.uk] 
 
 
 
  

Page 125

Agenda Item 12g

mailto:ciran.rafferty@cityoflondon.gov.uk


CITY BRIDGE TRUST  
 

Professional Development Events, Conferences and Seminars  
Attended 2

nd
 March to 4

th
 May 2016         

 

Date 
 

Organisation Type of Event City of London’s 
Representative 

Location/ 
Borough 

Summary 
 

03/03/16 Community Barnet Seminar Tim Wilson, Principal 
Grants and Social 
Investment Officer 

Barnet Your officer was invited to speak at an event 
organised by the local infrastructure body for 
charities seeking advice on submitting good quality 
funding applications. 

03/03/16 The 2015/16 Sustainable 
City Awards 

Awards 
Ceremony 

Jack Joslin & Shegufta 
Rahman, Grants Officers 

City of London Annual awards ceremony. 

10/03/16 – 
11/03/16 

Buzzacott Training Shegufta Rahman, Grants 
Officer 

City of London GIFTS Alta Two Day Training. 

21/03/16 NCVO Board Meeting Deputy Chief Grants Officer Society House, 
N1 

The Deputy Chief Grants Officer is a trustee of 
NCVO. 

22/03/16 Cripplegate Foundation Islington Giving 
Grants Sub-
Group 

Deputy Chief Grants Officer Islington The Deputy Chief Grants Officer is a board member 
of Islington Giving. 

23/03/16 Refugee Council Seminar Jack Joslin & Shegufta 
Rahman, Grants Officers 

Lambeth Funding Seminar – presentation delivered jointly by 
your two Grants Officers to an audience of c.30 
groups. 

31/03/16 London Funders Civil Society 
Reference 
Group 

Deputy Chief Grants Officer Camden The last meeting of the Civil Society Reference 
Group ahead of the launch of the findings of the 
future of Civil Society Support (see separate report 
„Future of London‟s Voluntary Sector Infrastructure 
Support‟ in today‟s papers. 

04/04/16 Centre for London Giving in 
London 
Reference 
Group 

Deputy Chief Grants Officer 1 Plough Place, 
EC4 

The first meeting of the reference group to oversee a 
scoping study ahead of a wider piece of research 
looking at giving in the capital for which you have 
awarded £19,000. 

P
age 126



13/04/16 Association of Charitable 
Foundations 

Seminar Tim Wilson, Principal 
Grants and Social 
Investment Officer 

Camden A meeting for funders interested in providing capacity 
building support to their applicants and grantees.  

04/05/16 Association of Charitable 
Foundations 

Seminar Tim Wilson, Principal 
Grants and Social 
Investment Officer 

Camden Your officer (alongside Big Society Capital and the 
Joseph Rowntree Foundation) was asked to speak to 
a group of foundations interested in social 
investment. 

11/04/16 Trust for London Moving on Up 
Management 
Group 

Ciaran Rafferty, Principal 
Grants Officer 

Little Britain A regular officers‟ meeting to oversee the Moving on 
Up project which is co-funded between CBT and 
Trust for London. 

12/04/16 London Youth Meeting Chief Grants Officer; Ciaran 
Rafferty, Principal Grants 
Officer 

Guildhall A chance to meet the new CEO of London Youth, 
Rosemary Watt-Wyness. 

13/04/16 City Bridge Trust/ London 
Funders 

Launch of “The 
Future of Civil 
Society Support 
in London” 
Review 

Chairman; 
Deputy Chairman; 
Chief Grants Officer; 
Deputy Chief Grants 
Officer; Members and 
CBT Team 

Guildhall Please see separate report for details. 

15/04/16 NSPCC Visit Chief Grants Officer Croydon A visit to the NSPCC Croydon Service Centre, to 
learn about the project CBT is funding. 

20/04/16 The Livery Lounge Lunch Speaking 
engagement 

Chief Grants Officer Guildhall The Chief Grants Officer, at the invitation of 
Alderman Vincent Keaveny, addressed a lunch party 
of liverymen from many liveries, on the work of the 
Trust.  

21/04/16 Institute for Voluntary 
Action Research 

Place based 
giving research 
reference group. 

Deputy Chief Grants Officer Camden IVAR have been researching different models of 
place-based given which will result in a practical on-
line guide for funders.  You are contributing towards 
the cost of this alongside a number of other funders. 

P
age 127



General Events and Receptions  
Attended 2

nd
 March to 4

th
 May 2016   

        

Date Organisation Type of Event City of London’s 
Representative 

Location/ 
Borough 

Summary  
 

04/03/16 The Prince‟s Trust Get Started with 
Cooking 
Celebration Event 

Shegufta Rahman, 
Grants Officer 

Lambeth Celebration event for disadvantaged, young 
Londoners at the end of their „Get Started with 
Cooking‟ programme.  

07/03/16 The Prince‟s Trust Awards Ceremony Deputy Chairman; Town 
Clerk;  
Shegufta Rahman, Grants 
Officer 

Westminster Annual awards ceremony celebrating young people‟s 
achievements through Prince‟s Trust programmes. 

08/03/16 City Bridge Trust 20
th
 Anniversary 

Event 
CBT Members;  
CBT Team 

Tower Bridge A very successful event to mark the Trust‟s 
anniversary. 

09/03/16 London Councils Grants Committee Deputy Chairman Southwark Street A regular meeting of the London Councils Grants 
Committee. 

18/03/16 Prince‟s Trust Meeting Chairman; 
Deputy Chairman; 
Chief Grants Officer; 
Shegufta Rahman, Grants 
Officer 

Guildhall A meeting of the Strategic Steering Group for the 
Prince‟s Trust grant. 

23/03/2016 City of London Investment 
Committee dinner 

Chief Grants Officer and 
Tim Wilson, Principal 
Grants and Social 
Investment Officer 

City of London Annual dinner where the Chairman spoke on a 
number of points including the City‟s philanthropic 
and social investment work. 

31/03/16 The Poetry Society Awards Ceremony Shegufta Rahman, Grants 
Officer 

Westminster Ted Hughes Award and National Poetry Competition 
awards reception. 

04/04/16 National Army 
Museum 

Reception Chairman London SW3 A reception hosted by the Duke of Kent. 

12/04/16 Brendoncare Ronald 
Gibson House 

Sensory Garden 
Opening 

Rebecca Green, Grants 
Administrator; Shegufta 
Rahman, Grants Officer 

Wandsworth Opening of sensory garden part-funded by City 
Bridge Trust. 

12/04/16 John Lyon‟s Charity Launch Event Chief Grants Officer; 
Ciaran Rafferty, Principal 
Grants Officer 

London SW9 See item in CGO report. 

18/04/16 NCVO Annual Evolve 
Conference Dinner 

Deputy Chief Grants 
Officer 

The Brewery, EC1 The Deputy Chief Grants Officer is a trustee of 
NCVO. 

P
age 128



21/04/16 Wilton‟s Music Hall Opening Night Chairman; 
Deputy Chairman 

London E1 The Opening Night performance of “I Am Thomas”. 

22/04/16 UBS Reception Chairman; Deputy 
Chairman; Alderman 
Keaveny, the 
Chamberlain, Chief 
Grants Officer and other 
CBT staff 

City of London An event to mark the second round of Stepping 
Stones awards and to launch round three. The 
Chairman spoke alongside representatives from UBS 
and one of the funded organisations.  

26/04/16 Moving on Up Reception/Seminar Ciaran Rafferty, Principal 
Grants Officer 

Royal Institute of 
Chartered 
Surveyors 

A networking event for member organisations of the 
Moving on Up project and employers to engage and 
share information. 

27/04/16 London Youth Workshop Ciaran Rafferty, Principal 
Grants Officer; Jack 
Joslin, Grants Officer 

Pitfield St N1 A meeting of funders and practitioners to consider 
the future shape of London‟s youth services in the 
context of the Vision for Young London common 
statement. 

27/04/16 Association of 
Charitable 
Foundations 

Board meeting Tim Wilson, Principal 
Grants and Social 
Investment Officer 

Camden One of the quarterly board meetings of this umbrella 
organisation for funders. Your officer is a trustee. 

29/04/16 The Prince‟s Trust Celebration Event Chairman 
Deputy Chairman; 
Shegufta Rahman, Grants 
Officer 

Guildhall Celebration event for disadvantaged, young 
Londoners at the end of their „Team‟ programme. 

03/05/16 Early Action Funders 
Alliance 

Steering Group 
meeting 

Chief Grants Officer London WC2 A quarterly steering group of the Alliance, of which 
CBT is a member, which works to support early 
action funding. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

P
age 129



City Philanthropy Events 
Attended 2

nd
 March to 4

th
 May 2016   

Date 
 

Organisation Type of Event City of London’s 
Representative 

Location/ 
Borough 

Summary 

02/03/16 Buzzacott Conference Cheryl Chapman, Director 
of City Philanthropy 

Wood Street The Director of City Philanthropy spoke at 
Buzzacott‟s one-day conference on “Millenials and 
new approaches to philanthropy” at their Wood Street 
offices. 

 

04/03/16 City Philanthropy Breakfast Director of City 
Philanthropy 

Guildhall A meeting of the Women for Change Breakfast Club, 
Chaired by Monique Villa, Chair of Thomson Reuters 
Foundation. 

 

10/03/16 Better Society Summit Director of City 
Philanthropy; 
Helen Atwood, City 
Philanthropy 

City of London A summit on the role of millenials in creating a better 
society. 

 

16/03/16 Prospectus Breakfast Director of City 
Philanthropy; 
Helen Atwood, City 
Philanthropy 

Camden A millennial talent attraction and retention networking 
breakfast. 

 

16/03/16 Beacon Awards Fellowship Event Director of City 
Philanthropy; 
Helen Atwood, City 
Philanthropy; 
Rosie Mitchell-Hudson, 
City Philanthropy 
 

City of London An evening with a world-leading social investor, 
together with a panel discussion on social investment 
and its journey with small social enterprises. 

 

23/03/16 Museum of London Breakfast Director of City 
Philanthropy; 
Helen Atwood, City 
Philanthropy 

Museum of London A breakfast to celebrate the launch of a new 
exhibition in the museum, over high level networking. 

 

25/03/16 City Funding 
Network 

Crowdfunding 
event 

Director of City 
Philanthropy; 
Helen Atwood, City 
Philanthropy 

City of London A crowdfunding evening in which three selected 
small charities supporting women and diversity 
pitched their charity and its objectives to an audience 
of potential funders. 

 

 

 

P
age 130



Document is Restricted

Page 131

Agenda Item 16
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 133

Agenda Item 17
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 ORDER OF THE COURT OF COMMON COUNCIL
	6 Minutes
	7 APPOINTMENT TO THE SOCIAL INVESTMENT BOARD
	8 Outstanding Actions
	9 Quinquennial Review
	A+    Appendix 1 to Quinquennial Review Report

	10 Progress Report
	11 Grants and Strategic Initiatives Recommendations and Assessments
	11a St Clement and St James Community Development Project
	11b British Refugee Council
	11c Community Activities Project Ealing - CAPE
	11d Nafsiyat Intercultural Therapy Centre
	11e Thames Reach Housing Association Limited
	11f The Log Cabin
	11g Together for Mental Wellbeing
	11h Limes Community and Children's Centre
	11i Poetry Society
	11j Sycamore Trust U.K.
	11k Women's Resource Centre
	11l Age Exchange Theatre Trust
	11m Age Concern Brent
	11n Attend
	11o Centre 404
	11p Redbridge Carers Support Service
	11q The Parochial Church Council Of The Ecclesiastical Parish Of St. Luke's Oseney Crescent
	11r Ealing Law Centre
	11s Home-Start Barnet
	11t Mary Ward Legal Centre
	11u Paddington Law Centre
	11v St Hilda's East
	11w Waltham Forest CAB
	11x Reach Volunteering
	11y StreetGames
	11z Voluntary Action Harrow
	12a Applications recommended for rejection
	D+    Report - Recommended for Rejection

	12b Grants/expenditure considered under Delegated Authority
	12c Withdrawn and Lapsed Applications
	12d Review of eligibility cap on capital requests
	12e Future of London's Voluntary Sector Infrastructure Support
	12f Reports on Monitoring Visits
	I+    Monitoring visit report - East European Advice Centre
	I++    Monitoring visit report - New Cross Gate Trust

	12g Events Attended
	16 Non-Public Minutes
	17 Pipeline of Pro-Active Strategic Grants



